
AGENDA FOR

CABINET

Contact: Julie Gallagher
Direct Line: 0161 253 6640
E-mail: Julie.gallagher@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Cabinet

Councillors: R Shori (Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Business Engagement and Regeneration (Chair)), 
A Simpson (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member Health 
and Wellbeing), S Briggs (Cabinet Member for Children 
and Families), J Kelly (Cabinet Member Corporate Affairs 
and Regulatory Services), E O'Brien (Cabinet Member 
Finance and Housing), A Quinn (Cabinet Member for 
Environment) and T Tariq (Cabinet Member for 
Communities)

Dear Member/Colleague

Cabinet

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet which will be held 
as follows:-

Date: Wednesday, 14 November 2018

Place: Meeting Rooms A & B - Town Hall

Time: 6.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of Cabinet are asked to consider whether they have an interest 
in any of the matters of the Agenda, and if so, to formally declare that 
interest.

3  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
about the work of the Council and the Council’s services.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time, if 
required.

4  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4)

Minutes from the meeting held on 16th October 2018 are attached.

5  CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT APRIL 2018 TO 
SEPTEMBER 2018  (Pages 5 - 42)

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing will report at 
the meeting.  Report attached.

6  MID -YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  (Pages 43 - 52)

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing will report at 
the meeting.  Report attached.

7  RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18  (Pages 53 - 74)

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing will report at 
the meeting.  Report attached.

8  COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN  (Pages 75 - 92)

Councillor Tamoor Tariq, Cabinet Member, Communities will report at the 
meeting.  Report attached.

9  DOMESTIC VIOLENCE  ABUSE STRATEGY  (Pages 93 - 104)

Councillor Tamoor Tariq, Cabinet Member, Communities will report at the 
meeting.  Report attached.

10  DEMOLITION OF FORMER GM POLICE HEADQUARTERS, IRWELL 
ST, BURY (PART A REPORT)  (Pages 105 - 110)

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing will report at 



the meeting.  Report attached. 

11  FOR INFORMATION - MINUTES OF ASSOCIATION OF GREATER 
MANCHESTER AUTHORITIES / GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 
AUTHORITY  (Pages 111 - 128)

To consider the minutes of meetings of the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority held on 28th September 2018.

12  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.

13  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider passing the appropriate resolution under Section 100 (A)(4), 
Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the reason that the following 
business involves the disclosure of exempt information as detailed against 
the item.

14  DEMOLITION OF FORMER GM POLICE HEADQUARTERS, IRWELL 
ST, BURY (PART B REPORT)  (Pages 129 - 150)

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet member for Finance and Housing will report at 
the meeting.  Report attached. 



This page is intentionally left blank



133

      Minutes of: THE CABINET  

Date of Meeting: 16th October 2018

Present: Councillor R Shori (in the Chair) 
Councillors E O Brien, A Quinn and A Simpson, T 
Tariq

Apologies: Councillor K S Briggs, J Daly, J Kelly and T 
Pickstone

Public attendance: No members of the public were in attendance.

CA.200 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Rishi Shori declared a personal interest in all items under consideration 
as his partner works for the NHS.

Councillor Andrea Simpson declared a personal interest in all items under 
consideration as a NHS employee.

Councillor Alan Quinn declared a personal interest in all items under consideration 
as his son and daughter in law work for NHS.

 
CA.201 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

A period of thirty minutes was allocated for any members of the public present at 
the meeting to ask questions about the work or performance of the Council or 
Council services. 

No questions were received.

CA.202 MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5th September 2018 be approved and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

CA.203 PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BURY HEALTH AND SOCAIL 
CARE LOCALITY PLAN AND APPOINTMENT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER OF 
BURY CCG

                                                                    
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing submitted a 
report setting out details of the progress on the implementation of Bury’s Locality 
Plan, the Local Care Alliance and Bury’s Single Commissioning Function.  As well 
as the financial implications of the Locality Plan for the health and social care 
system overall and for the Council in particular.  The report also provided details 
of Bury’s position in relation to the standardisation of hospital services across 
Greater Manchester and the future of the Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust. 

Delegated decisions:

That Cabinet agrees to:

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



134

1. Note the progress that has been made in the implementation of the Bury 
Locality Plan and approve the move to the next phase of integration;

2. Note the key milestones to be achieved by 31 March 2019 and agree the next 
steps of integration as set out in the report;

3. Approve the appointment of Bury Council Chief Executive as NHS Bury CCG’s 
Chief Officer from 1 October 2018, as agreed at the Governing Body meeting 
of the CCG on 6 September 2018 and NHS approval.

Reason for the decision:

The approval of the recommendations will facilitate the next steps of the 
integration process for alignment of functions and governance arrangements to 
operate.

CA.204 POLICY DIRECTIONS OCTOBER 2018 (Local Plan)

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing attended the meeting to provide 
members with an update on Bury’s Local Plan.  Together with the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework the Local Plan will form a key part of Bury’s 
overall development plan, providing a range of non-strategic and more locally 
specific policies, designations and site allocations.  

Delegated decision:

The Cabinet agrees:

Option 1 (Recommended option)

That Members note the main themes of the responses to the Local Plan Key 
Issues and Policy Framework.

That Members approve the Local Plan Policy Directions report together with the 
proposed consultation measures outlined in this report.

Reason for the decision:

The Policy Directions report is another important stage in the production of Bury’s 
Local Plan. The Policy Directions give a clear indication of the intended scope and 
direction of specific planning policies in the Bury Local Plan and consultation will 
ensure that all interested parties have an opportunity to play a part at this key 
stage of the process.

Other options considered and rejected:

Option 2
That Members note the main themes of the responses to the Local Plan Key 
Issues and Policy Framework.

That Members seek revisions to the proposed content of the Local Plan Policy 
Directions report prior to consultation and/or Members seek revisions to the 

Document Pack Page 2



135

proposed measures for undertaking consultation - Members to specify the nature 
of any revisions to be sought.

CA.205 FOR INFORMATION MINUTES OF THE ASSOCAITION OF GREATER 
MANCHESTER AUTHORITIES / GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 
AUTHORITY

Councillor Rishi Shori, Leader of the Council
CHAIR

(Note:  The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.13pm.)

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1

MEETING: CABINET
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:
14 NOVEMBER, 2018
22 NOVEMBER, 2018

SUBJECT: CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT – 
APRIL 2018 TO SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND HOUSING

CONTACT OFFICER: GEOFF LITTLE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
STEVE KENYON, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
OF RESOURCES & REGULATION

TYPE OF DECISION: FOR INFORMATION 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain

SUMMARY: The report informs Members of the Council’s financial 
position for the period April 2018 to September 2018 
and projects the estimated outturn at the end of 
2018/19.

The report also includes Prudential Indicators in 
accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Members are asked to note the financial position of the 
Council as at 30 September 2018.
Members are also asked to approve the 
recommendations from the recent LGA Finance Review 
regarding line management accountability to the S151 
Officer as detailed in par. 2.4.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with Policy 
Framework? Yes.

Statement by the s151 Officer: The report has been prepared in accordance 

Agenda
Item

NOTICE OF KEY DECISION
Agenda
Item

Document Pack Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2

with all relevant Codes of Practice.
There may be risks arising from remedial 
action taken to address the budget position; 
these will be identified by Directors at joint 
SLT / Cabinet meetings. Additionally, a series 
of measures was drawn up in 2016/17 to 
address the extremely difficult financial 
situation facing the Council. These have 
continued into 2018/19 and are detailed in 
par.3.6 on page 5 of this report. 

Statement by Interim Executive 
Director of Resources & 
Regulation:

Successful budget monitoring provides early 
warning of potential major overspends or 
underspends against budgets which Members 
need to be aware of.  

This report draws attention to the fact that, 
based on the most prudent of forecasts, 
several budget hotspots exist which will need 
remedial action.

Members and officers will be examining these 
areas in more detail at the joint SLT / 
Cabinet meetings.

Equality/Diversity implications: No 

Considered by Monitoring Officer: The Council is required by statute to set and 
maintain a balanced budget. Careful 
management of the finances in year allows 
the Council to achieve this. This report 
provides a means for Members to carefully
monitor the situation.                                       
Budget monitoring is a requirement of the 
Council’s Financial Regulations to which 
Financial Regulation B: Financial Planning 
4.3. (Budget Monitoring and Control) relates.

Are there any legal implications? Yes

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny Committee

TRACKING/PROCESS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Steve Kenyon

Chief 
Executive/
Strategic 

Leadership 
Team

 Cabinet Overview & 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

Council Ward 
Members

Partners

05/11/18 14/11/18 22/11/18

Document Pack Page 6



3

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report informs Members of the forecast outturn for 2018/19 based upon current 
spend for the period 1 April 2018 to 30 September 2018 in respect of the revenue 
budget, capital budget, the Housing Revenue Account, treasury management and the 
CCG.

1.2 Projections are based on current trends, information, and professional judgement 
from service managers and finance staff.

 
1.3 The revenue budget projections highlight the fact that budget pressures exist in some 

key areas and it will be necessary to continue to examine options for improving the 
situation further.  

2.0 BUDGET MONITORING PROCESSES 

2.1 Reports are presented quarterly to facilitate close monitoring of spend and 
implementation of action plans during the year.

2.2 Reports are also presented to the Strategic Leadership Team on a monthly basis and 
detailed monitoring information will also be discussed at joint SLT / Cabinet meetings 
during the year.

2.3 It is intended that improvements will continue to be made to the budget monitoring 
process, building on the significant developments implemented over the past few 
years. 

2.4 Findings from recent LGA Review of Finance: 

2.4.1 In July 2018 the Chief Executive requested the LGA to undertake a financial review 
that would provide a high level assessment of the Council’s current financial position, 
future budget challenges and its arrangements for ensuring financial sustainability. 

2.4.2 One of the findings from the review that was carried out in August is in connection to 
how “departmental finance officers are not professionally accountable to the statutory 
chief finance officer. This hinders firstly gaining a collective understanding of cost 
drivers and financial issues when preparing budgets and secondly, hinders the CFO 
ability to fulfil his responsibility as the head of the finance profession. 

2.4.3 Their recommendations include:
 “changing line management arrangements to ensure all lead departmental 

finance officers are professionally accountable to the CFO;
 Assimilating the departmental back office support services into the corporate 

team;
 Generic job descriptions and flexible finance structure to enable rotation of 

senior finance team members;
 The use of self-assessment toolkits such as CIPFA Financial Management toolkit 

to gain a greater understanding of the financial expertise and financial
governance across the Council”.

2.4.4 Finance Officers will retain their links to the services they support but this will be on a 
business partners model not direct line management. 

2.4.5 These recommendations align with wider proposals to strengthen the corporate core 
of the Council. 

Document Pack Page 7



4

2.4.6 Members are asked to note and approve these recommendations. 

3.0 SUMMARY OF REVENUE BUDGET POSITION

3.1    The table below outlines the annual budget and forecast outturn based upon known
         factors and the professional views of service managers as at month 6: 

Department Budget Forecast Variance
£000 £000 £000

Communities & Wellbeing 69,899 71,346 +1,447
Resources & Regulation 5,686 6,419 +733
Children, Young People & Culture
Business, Growth & Infrastructure
Operations
Art Gallery & Museum

40,175
(3,808)
10,477

439

44,295
(1,880)
12,183

534

+4,120
+1,928
+1,706

+95
Non Service Specific 15,148 8,708 (6,440)
TOTAL 138,016 141,605 +3,589

3.2 The projected overspend of £3.589m represents approximately 2.60% of the total net 
budget of £138.016m.  

3.3 An overview of the reasons for this variance is outlined in the table below; more 
detailed analysis is provided in section 4 of the report.

Month 6 
Variance

Reason

Children, 
Young 
People 

& Culture

£’000

Communities 
& 

Wellbeing

£’000

Resources 
& 

Regulation

£’000

Business, 
Growth 

&
Infrastructure

£’000

Art 
Gallery 

& 
Museum

£’000

Operations

£’000

Non 
Service 
Specific

£’000

TOTAL

£’000

Demand 
Pressures

4,268 2,929 0 0 0 51 547 7,795

Delayed 
Achievement 
of Cuts 
Options

135 9,021 200 740 0 1,200 0 11,296

Non-
Achievement 
of Cuts 
Options

57 0 0 0 0 0 0 57

Income 
Shortfall

0 190 396 1,617 95 555 0 2,853

Planned use 
of one-off 
funding

(100) (1,327) 0 0 0 0 (1,743) (3,170)

Use of 
Reserves

0 (2,842) (206) (142) 0 0 0 (3,190)

Continued 
Impact of 10 
Control 
Measures

0 0 (45) 0 0 0 0 (45)

Other (240) (6,524) 388 (287) 0 (100) (5,244) (12,007)

TOTAL
4,120 1,447 733 1,928 95 1,706 (6,440) 3,589

Document Pack Page 8



5

3.4 Members need to be aware that financial reporting involves an element of judgement, 
and this particularly applies to the treatment of budget pressures.  Often an area of 
overspending identified at this point in the year has been resolved before the end of 
the year following appropriate remedial action.  

3.5 However it is felt appropriate to alert Members to potential problems at this stage so 
that they can continue to monitor the situation and take ownership of the necessary 
remedial action and this is the basis on which the report is written.

3.6 Due to the extremely difficult financial situation that the Council faced in 2016/17 the 
Senior Leadership Team agreed and drew up an action plan with some immediate 
additional spending controls over & above usual controls. These have continued in 
2018/19. 

These include:

1. Recruitment freeze on staff and new agency placements (exceptions to be 
signed off by SLT);

2. Release of all existing casual / agency staff (exceptions to be signed off by 
SLT);

3. Cease overtime / additional hours (exceptions to be signed off by SLT);

4. Enter into no new training commitments, and review existing arrangements 
(exceptions to be signed off by SLT);

5. Re-launch Work Life Balance options around reduced hours / purchase of leave;

6. Cease spend on discretionary budgets; stationery, office equipment etc;

7. Cease spend on IT / Communications (exceptions to be signed off by SLT);

8. Any spend greater than £250 to be signed off by Executive Director;

9. Any new contractual commitments greater than £5,000 (lifetime value of 
contract) to be signed off by SLT;

10. Consider “in year” budget options – e.g. previously unidentified efficiencies, 
review of non-key services.

3.7 These were communicated to staff in 2016/17 and compliance with these will continue 
to be monitored throughout the year.  It is expected that these actions will not only 
help to reduce the financial burden facing the Council within the current year but also 
for the coming years. 

3.8 In addition to these measures, Executive Directors have been tasked with preparing 
“turnaround” plans as a matter of urgency for their Departments, to ensure that levels 
of expenditure are controlled and sustainable going forward.

4.0    SERVICE SPECIFIC FINANCIAL MONITORING

4.1     COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING

4.1.1 The current projected overspend for Communities and Wellbeing is £1.447m.

Document Pack Page 9



6

4.1.2 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the chart below;

Vacancies & Other 
Cost Savings                                                 

-£675k

M6 Total 
Variance 
£1,447k

Reduced spending on services -£53k

Service Redesign                   
£9,135k

 

Funding From 
Health Monies 

& Grant 
fundings and 

reserve               
-£9,820k 

Income Variances -£69k

 Demand 
Pressures 
£2,929k 

4.1.3 Further details by service area are outlined below, along with remedial action being 
taken.  

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Funding from Health 
Monies ,Grant Funding 

and Reserves

Improved Better Care 
Fund (IBCF) £5,058k.

Adult Social Care 
Protection Grant -
£1,327k. 

Reserves -£2,842k.

System Resilience 
Grant -£593k. 

The IBCF is being used (in line 
with funding conditions) to 
ensure that Adult Social Care 
needs are met, pressures are 
reduced on the NHS and that 
the local social care provider 
market is supported Care in 
the community.

This is a one off grant being 
used to support demand 
pressures within the Choices 
for Living Well service. 

One off support across Adult 
Social Care Budgets.

Bury CCG support towards 
supporting the Choices for 
Living Well service.

Document Pack Page 10



7

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Sub Total -9,820

Demand Pressures

Care in the 
Community budgets–
£1,848k (Reason: 
Demographic 
pressure). 

Local Reform & 
Community Voices - 
£204k (Reason: 
Additional cost re 
Deprivation of Liberty 
safeguarding (DoLS) 
assessments).

Reviewing team -
£149k (Reason: 
Staffing Costs).

Corporate Policy - 
£36k (Reason: 
Housing survey 
review).

ACS Senior 
Management -£50k 
(Reason: Contribution 
to Joint Authority re 
Health & Social care 
Integration).

ACS Finance - £48k 
(Reason: Cost of 2 
additional staff within 
PSBT team).

The pressure is being offset by 
IBCF support. There is ongoing 
review of high cost care 
packages. A shift to reduce the 
level of residential care 
activity. Move towards an asset 
based approach to care by 
placing people’s skills, 
interests, community resources 
(i.e. assets) alongside their 
needs to improve care and 
value for money. Embed a 
business focussed approach 
within ASC operational 
workforce regarding the 
financial impact to   council 
budgets when designing     
care packages. 

The completion of DoLS 
assessments is a statutory 
function (i.e Unavoidable). 
Attempts are ongoing to 
ensure costs of assessments 
are reduced/kept to a 
minimum and requests for 
authorisations are starting to 
plateau.   IBCF resource   may 
be utilised to support this 
pressure.

Pressure is offset by the 
Improved Better Care Fund. 
This service is meeting 
statutory responsibilities and is 
also   contributing to the 
departmental savings 
programme. 

This pressure is funded by 
departmental reserves.

This pressure is funded from 
Corporate Reserves.

This pressure is being funded 
from the Improved Better Care 
Fund. This team is responsible 
for clawing back un-used 
personal budgets.

Document Pack Page 11



8

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Advice & assessment - 
£11k (Reason: 
Additional cost re 
Appropriate Adult 
Scheme).

Choices for Living Well 
Service - £539k  
(Reason: Largely 
Staffing related) 

ACS Training Program   
Adults -£36k (Reason: 
property rental costs 
at Bury Adult Learning 
Centre).

Community safety -
£8k (Reason: small 
overspend on salary 
budget due to 
maternity leave).

Reduced spend on non-
essential budgets.

This pressure is   offset by a 
mix of ASC protection grant 
Improved Better Care Fund 
(IBCF) and departmental 
Reserves. A significant amount 
of this pressure is related to a 
review high cost care packages 
with the aim of reducing the 
pressure on the care in the 
community budget. 

Generate more income from 
Private, Voluntary & 
Independent (PVI) sector.

Reduced spend on non-
essential budgets.

Sub Total +2,929

Service redesign 
(Note: A number of 

Budgets   have yet to 
achieve  savings target 

against specific schemes, 
as a consequence this is 
partly/wholly the reason 

for the overspends)

Care in the 
Community budgets–
£2,400k (Reason: 
Savings Target). 

Housing related 
Services Inclusion - 
£114k (Reason: 
savings target).

Strategic Lead 
Strategy & 
Development team -
£155k (Reason: 
Unachieved savings 

The pressure is being offset by 
IBCF support. There is ongoing 
review of high cost care 
packages. A shift to reduce the 
level of residential care 
activity. Move towards an asset 
based approach to care by 
placing people’s skills, 
interests, community resources 
(i.e. assets) alongside their 
needs to improve care and 
value for money. Embed a 
business focussed approach 
within ASC operational 
workforce regarding the 
financial impact to   council 
budgets when designing     
care packages. 

Pressure is offset by savings 
within other areas of Housing 
Related Services.

Pressure is offset by 
underspends on staff vacancies 
and secondments within 
Commissioning teams.

Document Pack Page 12



9

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

targets).

Finance - £1,219k 
(Reason: Unallocated/ 
Unachieved savings 
targets).

Choices for Living Well 
-£2,740k (Reason: 
Unallocated/ 
Unachieved savings 
targets). 

Public Health -£1,198k 
(Reason: Core funding 
cuts and unachieved 
savings targets).

ACS Staffing section - 
£57k (Reason: 
Overspend relates to a 
partly unachieved 
savings target).

Civics -£332k 
(Reason: Largely due 
to low footfall at Civic 
venues).

Environment - £420k 
(Reason: Unachieved 
savings target).

Leisure - £500k 
(Reason: Delay in 
achieving savings).

This pressure is funded by 
departmental reserves.

This pressure is   offset by a 
mix of ASC protection grant 
Improved Better Care Fund 
and departmental Reserves. 
Savings will be met by 
ensuring Operational functions 
for social care are transferred 
to new service delivery models.

The pressure will be funded by 
the use of Public Health 
reserves. An action plan is in 
place to manage the on-going 
pressures.

Options are being reviewed to 
expand the external 
recruitment agency.

This service is part of a wider 
Growth and Investment Review 
to address low footfall.

The savings target is linked to 
a joint review across the CWB 
Department and the Resources 
& Regulation Department.  
Phase 2 of the review has been 
completed. Next steps & 
savings will be subject to 
guidance from SLT and elected 
members and will be 
contingent on wider 
developments across the 
council such as the 
development of the digital 
offer, transformation to 
Neighbourhood Working and 
development of Traded 
Services. 

The Leisure service is part of a 
wider Growth and Investment 
Review. However 
approximately £200k savings 
has already been achieved 
from changes to VAT 
regulations. Further options 
are underway which include a 

Document Pack Page 13



10

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

continuation of   ongoing 
service reviews to identify 
efficiencies.

Sub Total +9,135

Income Variances

Accommodation Team  
-£93k (Reason: 
Additional from the 
accommodation of 
asylum seekers)

ACS Carelink -£9k 
(Reason: Increase 
income from Falcon & 
Griffin)

Employment Support - 
£31k (Reason: 
increased income from 
personal budgets)

Quality Assurance and 
service Development - 
£9k (Reason: 
Increased income from 
training).

LSC Main Grant - £33k 
(Reason: Lower rent 
contribution from 
Persona than 
anticipated).

Central Community 
Education - £43k 
(Reason: reduction in 
Leisure learning 
income).

Internal recruitment-
£3k   (Reason: new 
income generating 
scheme).

Additional income to be used 
to offset savings targets within 
Housing Related Services.

Additional income to be used 
to support pressures elsewhere 
within CWB.

Additional income to be used 
to support pressures elsewhere 
within CWB.

Additional income from training 
student social workers.

Renegotiation of rental income 
from Persona from 2019/20.

A review of all service areas is 
being undertaken.

Additional income to be used 
to support pressures elsewhere 
within CWB.

Sub Total -69

Vacancies and Other 
Staff Cost Savings  

Commissioning & 
Procurement – Other 
Services -£290k 
(Reason: Staffing 
Vacancies).

Finance        -£132k 
(Reason: Staffing 
Vacancies).

ASC Operations -         
-£238k (Reason: 
Staffing Vacancies).

Underspend being used to 
offset pressures within other 
areas of Commissioning & 
procurement. 

Underspend being used to 
offset pressures within other 
areas of Finance.

Underspend being used to 
offset pressures within other 
areas of ASC Operations.

Document Pack Page 14



11

Theme Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Social Development – 
Communications - 
£15k (Reason: Staffing 
Vacancies).

Underspends to be used to 
offset pressures within CWB.

Sub Total -675
Reduced spending on 
services

Housing Related 
Services - £23k 
(Reason: Some 
schemes have been 
delayed).

Environment - £30k 
(Reason: Reduction in 
the cost of some 
contracts).

Underspend being used to 
offset pressures within other 
areas of Housing Related 
Services.

Underspend being used to 
offset savings target within 
Environmental Services.

Sub Total -53
Total +1,447

4.2 RESOURCES AND REGULATION

4.2.1 The Resources & Regulation Department is forecasting an overall overspend of 
£0.733m.

4.2.2 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the chart below;

4.2.3 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the table overleaf;

Delays in 
Implementation 

of 
Savings 

Net Increase In 
Staffing and 

Running Costs

+200k +93k 

Deficit within 
Catering and 

Cleaning Traded 
Services

Members 
Allowances 

-89k

Total 

+529k +733k 

Document Pack Page 15



12

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Deficit within 
Catering and 
Cleaning 
Traded 
Services 

+529 Salary costs higher 
than priced in the SLA 
for 2018/19 
(£168,000). It was 
decided that the SLA 
prices quoted would 
not include the pay 
award for 2018/19. 
This was to retain 
custom from the 
schools. Small 
reduction in income 
due to a number of 
sites which transferred 
their business 
elsewhere. The 2018-
19 pay award was not 
funded. It was decided 
that the SLA prices 
quoted for the current 
year would not include 
the pay award for 
2018/19, this was to 
retain custom from the 
schools (£350,000). 
Inadequate budget for 
CYPAD / ParentPay 
systems (£50,000). 
Cost of a mutual 
settlement 
unbudgeted.

The Caretaking service is reviewing 
its processes and structure to ensure 
there is no income leakage from the 
relief pool. The appropriate salary 
levels will be incorporated for the 
pricing for the forthcoming year. 
The CYPAD Software cost will be 
taken from a Catering reserve as will 
the severance cost. The service has 
identified c£150k pa in cost savings 
which can be made, unfortunately 
this will not be possible until the end 
on 2018, this is as a result of 
requiring some small infrastructure 
investment, a redeployment exercise 
and some training. The service is 
reviewing its sales prices in the high 
schools, (this has not been done for 
some time) which is likely to deliver a 
higher profit share to Council. The 
service is reviewing its staffing 
structure at a site and management 
level to ensure that there is no 
waste. The service will review its 
primary pricing structure following 
the staffing review with a view to 
minimising the deficit as far as 
possible in the following financial 
year. The appropriate salary levels 
will be incorporated for the pricing for 
the forthcoming year. 

Delayed 
Implementation 
of Savings 
Targets

+200 Within Finance and 
Efficiency (£100,000) 
and Legal Services 
(£100,000).

Revised means of achieving the 
targets being considered. Awaiting 
outcome of reviews of services.

Net Increase In 
Staffing and 
Running Costs

+93 Contribution to bad 
debt provision 
(£209,000), Credit 
card charges 
overspend (£51,000), 
reduced retrospective 
rebate income re 
Procurement 
(£40,000) offset by 
net underspends on 
staffing (£127,000).

Ongoing management of the budgets 
in order to reduce staffing and 
running costs spend and to use 
additional income from Payroll where 
achieved. 

Document Pack Page 16



13

4.3 BUSINESS, GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE

4.3.1 The Director of Business, Growth & Infrastructure is forecasting an overall overspend 
of £1.928m.

4.3.2 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the chart below;

Members 
Allowances

-89 Payments expected to 
be less than budget.

To be used to assist in reducing the 
estimated overspend within the 
department in 2018/19.

Delays in 
Implementation 

of 
Savings 

Various 
Underspends 

+740k -513k 

Asset 
Management

- Property 
Income and 
Architects 
Income
Shortfall

Total 

+1,701k +1,928k 

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Property 
Services 
Income 
Shortfall

+1,507 Underachievement in 
income against budget 
owing to property sales 
(£283,000).

Void properties for letting 
and rent reductions 
(£323,000).

Town Centre ground rent 
income underachieving 
against budget 
(£337,000).

Restructuring of budgets as part of 
the creation of the Growth 
directorate.

All vacant properties to be market for 
re-let, or sold.

Town Centre income is largely 
beyond the Council’s control, but the 
income figures associated with The 
Mill Gate Centre and Longfield Centre 
will continue to be scrutinised.

Discussions are taking place over 
whether the Council wishes to refresh 
its approach to its Investment 
Strategy in the light of recent market 
trends.

Independent management of 
Radcliffe Market to reduce running 
costs. 

Document Pack Page 17



14

4.4 CHILDREN’S, YOUNG PEOPLE AND CULTURE
 
4.4.1 The overall Children’s, Young People & Culture budget is currently projecting an 

overspend of £4.120m. 

4.4.2 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the chart overleaf;

Architects 
Income 
Shortfall

+194

Shortfall in income 
against budget from 
investment properties 
(£478,000).

Shortfall in Markets 
income (£86,000).

Shortfall in Architects 
income (£194,000) due 
to income shortfall 
(reduction in schemes) – 
closure of libraries, adult 
care transferred to 
Persona and general 
reduction in engagement 
of Architectural Services 
(in particular Property & 
Leisure). 
 

Delivery strategy to be developed 
and implemented to sell those 
properties not achieving sufficient 
income and to build/acquire others 
which will deliver rental growth in the 
future.

Unless the mandatory use of our own 
internal services is encouraged it is 
impossible to forecast the outcome 
with any degree of accuracy.

Therefore it is difficult to provide a 
positive narrative to mitigate any 
projected overspend and we may 
only consider further efficiencies and 
the potential reduction of our 
expenditure relating to resources.

Delayed 
Implementation 
of Savings 
Targets

+740 Within Markets 
(£30,000), Admin 
Buildings (£266,000), 
Property Services 
(£100,000), Urban 
Renewal (100,000), 
Architects (£194,000) 
and Localities 
(£50,000).

Revised means of achieving the 
targets being considered. Awaiting 
outcome of reviews of services.

Various 
Underspends

-513 Reduced AGMA costs in 
Economic Development 
(£19,000), no 
Evergreen contribution 
(£19,000), additional 
planning application fee 
income (£59,000), 
reduced CRC allowances 
in Energy Conservation 
(£106,000), additional 
CCG rental income for 
Admin Buildings 
(£76,000) plus savings 
on salaries and running 
costs (£234,000). 

To be used to assist in reducing the 
estimated overspend within the 
directorate in 2018/19.

Document Pack Page 18



15

Planned Use 
of One-Off
Savings

Non-
Achievement 
and Delays in 
Implementing 

Savings

+192k 

Home to 
School/ 
College

Transport – 
SEN & LLDD

+262k 

Other 
VariancesChildren's 

Social Care 
Demand 
Pressures

-100k -240k
Total 

+4,006k +4,120k 

4.4.3 Further details of the major variations are provided in the table below:

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Children’s Social Care Demand Pressures - £4,006k

Short Breaks 
Service

+120 On-going 
Demand 
pressures

The projected increase is due to a 
number of new cases and numerous 
cases where there has been an 
increase in support on both Direct 
Payments and Commissioned Services.

Children’s 
Residential

+2,001 On-going 
Demand 
pressures

This forecast overspending above the 
£2 million annual budget is based on 
the number of children in residential 
placements.  There have been 2 
additional high cost residential 
placements since month 5 that have 
increased the forecast overspending by 
£240,000.

Through Care 
Support Costs

+544 On-going 
Demand 
pressures

Forecast housing expenditure based on 
the number of care leavers supported 
through the budget.

Independent 
Fostering Agencies

+709 On-going 
Demand 
pressures

Forecast is based on the number of 
children in Independent Fostering 
Agency placements.  

Document Pack Page 19



16

Fostering Team +161 Ongoing 
Demand 
pressures

Forecast overspend due to current level 
of demand.

Adoption Service +133 One-off Due to sibling groups and individual 
children being placed for adoption with 
families outside of the Regional 
Adoption Agency creating additional 
costs for the Authority. 

Safeguarding +338 One-off Safeguarding Unit (+29)
Additional costs due to maternity 
covered by Agency with no budget for 
cover. 

Safeguarding Teams (+194) – Staff 
issues will mean that this service will 
still overspend due to agency staff 
covering posts.

Emergency Duty Team (+75) – Service 
is struggling to recruit staff and is now 
reliant on agency staff to cover the 
statutory hours required.

Initial Response Team (+40) – Staff 
recruitment issues are placing a heavy 
reliance on agency staff, and coupled 
with cost pressures are contributing to 
the forecast. 

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Document Pack Page 20



17

Home to School/College Transport (SEND & LLDD) - £262k

Home to School 
Transport – SEND

(Special 
Educational Needs 
& Disabilities)

Home to College 
Transport – LLDD

(Post-16 Learners 
with Learning 
Difficulties and 
Disabilities

+262 Continuing 
increased 
demand

Savings on Bus Escorts and non-SEN 
school transport have been offset by 
overspendings on Transport for SEND 
pupils and Home to College Transport 
for LLDD students.

The forecast expenditure has increased 
following the schedule updates in 
September for the new and increased 
cohort requiring transport. 

In addition, there is a forecast 
overspending of £400,000 on Home to 
School Transport for SEND pupils 
attending out-of-borough placements 
funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant.

The total forecast overspending on 
home to schools and colleges transport 
is approx. £662,000 and is expected to 
continue at least at this level in the 
next financial year.

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Non-achievement and delays in Implementing Savings - £192k

Libraries +97 Savings 
shortfall 
(probable 
one-off)

Business rates and costs relating to 
library buildings that are due to close 
are contributing to the forecast 
overspending.
In addition there are £20,700 of budget 
savings still to be allocated and an 
AGMA payment due that is not 
supported by a budget.

Document Pack Page 21



18

Statutory 
Regulatory

+57

+38

Remainder 
of the 
2016/17 
and 
2017/18 
savings 
that have 
yet to be 
achieved

Probable 
on-going 
shortfall

At the beginning of 2016, it became 
apparent that the financial problems 
within the Dedicated Schools Grant 
meant that the 2016/17 savings option 
“External Funding Optimization” 
amounting to £900,000 would not be 
wholly achieved.
The shortfall in the required budget 
savings was treated as a generic 
budget saving and distributed amongst 
the Department.
Although almost ¾ of the 2016/17 
savings target has been met it has not 
been fully feasible to identify 
alternative provision for the remainder 
mainly due to the demand pressures as 
shown above that CYP&C is currently 
encountering.
As previously reported these 
unallocated savings amounted to 
£266,000 and gradually they have been 
reduced by £209,000.

Childcare & Extended Services (+38):
Delays in decision of allocating savings 
target, offset by delays in implementing 
new structure.

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Planned Use of One-Off Funding – £100k
Connexions -100 One-off 

prior year 
grant 
funding

Prior year ESF grant funding to be used 
to offset against the departmental 
overspend.

Other - £240k

External Legal 
Fees

+83 On-going The increase in volume of court cases 
over the following months will attract 
additional court and barrister fees.

Safeguarding 
Building Costs

+24 One-off Additional costs due to the delay in 
vacating Higher Lane.

Child Sexual 
Exploitation

+50 One-off The team has a 12 month secondment 
of a team manager additional to the 
establishment.

Document Pack Page 22



19

Children’s 
Domestic Violence

-58 One-off A new team that is not yet fully staffed.

Reach Out ASU -89 One-off Vacant post and other savings identified 
due to changes in the planned delivery 
of the service.

Support at Home -25 Ongoing Savings achieved through Support work 
being done by the Reach Out Project.

Connexions & 
Youth Service

-48 One-off Salary savings & use of one-off grant.

CS Human 
Resources

-130 One-off Salary savings due to delays in the new 
structure being put in place.

Performance, 
Planning & 
Commissioning

-32 One-off Salary savings.

Other -15 One-off Salary savings and reduced 
discretionary spending in a number of 
services throughout the department.

4.5 Department of Operations

4.5.1 The Department of Operations is forecasting an overall overspend of £1.706m.

4.5.2 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the chart below;

4.5.3 Reasons for major variations are illustrated in the table overleaf;

Demand 
Pressure

Service 
Redesign 

+51k +1,200k 

Vacancies and 
other staff cost

Shortfall in 
Income

-100k
Total 

+555k +1,706k 

Document Pack Page 23



20

Activity Variance
£’000

Reason Action Being Taken

Income variance +455

+100

Engineering

Estimated shortfalls in 
income relating to Off 
street parking 
(£272,000), Greater 
Manchester Road 
Activities Permit 
Scheme (GMRAPS) 
(£27,000), bus lane 
enforcement 
(£73,000), 
decriminalised parking 
fines (£90,000), coring 
(£37,000). These are 
offset by estimated 
surpluses in Council 
parking permits 
(£35,000), on-street 
parking receipts 
(£9,000).

Grounds 
Maintenance

Shortfall in income 
from Schools and 
reduced S106 works.

The shortfalls have arisen as a result 
of historic income targets, which are  
unachievable or where circumstances 
have now changed;

Car park income target does not take 
into account the fact that the Council 
no longer has the majority of car 
parks. 

GMRAPS (Greater Manchester Road 
Activities Permit Scheme), again, the 
income target was set at a time when 
the utility companies were 
undertaking a lot of planned renewals 
of their assets in the Borough.

Reduced expenditure where possible, 
upskill the workforce so more work 
can be done in-house.

Sub Total +555k

Service Redesign +1,200 Waste Management – 
delay in achieving 
savings target. 

Ongoing service performance and 
staffing review has created a £250k 
saving already included within the 
projections.

Full range of strategic options 
developed for SLT/Cabinet 
consideration. Largest income 
generation will be charging for green 
waste collections as recently 
implemented in Rossendale and 
Trafford, however the initial focus will 
be on service provision efficiencies.

Continue to develop new models of 
working.

Sub Total +1,200

Document Pack Page 24



21

4.6 ART GALLERY & MUSEUM

4.6.1 There is a forecast net overspend of £95,000 due to The Museum Development 
income budget from prior years continuing to be unachievable.

4.7 NON-SERVICE SPECIFIC 

4.7.1 There is a forecast net underspend of £6.440m. This relates primarily to the Council’s 
Treasury Management activity (see Section 9.0, page 28 for further details) of an 
increase in investment income (£4.0m), a reduced need in provisions of £2.5m plus a 
projected overspend of £547,000 on the Coroner’s Court budget. 

5.0 CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP (CCG)

5.1. At Month 6, the CCG is reporting a year to date position and forecast outturn in line 
with plan.

5.2. However, the CCG is reporting a net risk position of £2.0m. 

Table 1: Summary Financial Performance for the Period Ending 30th September 2018

Demand Pressure +51 Street Cleaning – 
Overspend on staffing 
budgets due to long 
term sickness

Reduce spending on non-essential 
expenditure where possible. 

Sub Total +51

Vacancies and 
Other Staff 
savings

-52

-48

Traffic Management – 
saving on staffing 
budgets due to 
vacancies.

Waste Management – 
Education Awareness 
Team - saving on 
staffing budgets due to 
vacancies.

Underspends are being used to offset 
overspends elsewhere within 
Engineers.

Underspends are being used to offset 
overspends elsewhere within Waste 
Management.

Sub Total -100

Total Operations +1,706

Document Pack Page 25



22

Financial Performance

Area YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget FOT FOT 

Variance

Allocations (147,651) (147,651) 0 (297,386) (297,386) 0
Acute Services 74,453 75,575 1,122 150,893 152,463 1,570
Community Health Services 12,535 12,708 172 25,153 25,303 150
Continuing Care Services 6,692 6,663 (30) 13,553 13,687 134
Mental Health Services 14,256 14,720 464 28,196 29,165 969
Other Programme Services 4,338 4,366 30 7,877 7,898 21
Primary Care Services 18,237 18,599 362 36,228 36,345 117
Primary Care Co-commissioning 12,853 12,853 0 26,473 26,473 0
Programme Costs 143,364 145,484 2,120 288,373 291,334 2,961
Running Cost 2,167 2,167 0 4,349 4,349 0
Total Costs 145,531 147,651 2,120 292,722 295,683 2,961
Reserves 2,120 0 (2,120) 4,664 1,703 (2,961)
(Surplus)/Deficit 0 (0) 0 0 0 0

Financial Performance 2018-19

£000's

5.3. Key risks identified to be managed and mitigated during 2018/19 continue to be the 
trend of increased non elective acute activity; the control of elective acute activity as 
the contract has moved to a Payment by Results (PbR) contract in 2018-19; the non-
delivery of the efficiency savings (QIPP) gap of £8.4m; and the ongoing financial 
sustainability and quality improvement issues for the CCG’s main providers. The 
programme of accelerated savings continues to monitor development and delivery of 
work streams in order to identify areas where services can be reconfigured or 
decommissioned. 

5.4. Financial Pressures

5.4.1 At month 6, key areas that are showing significant forecast outturn pressures are the 
acute and mental health services.

5.4.2 The acute services continue to be under pressure from increasing non elective 
activity.  Financially this pressure is mitigated due to a ‘cap’ agreed within the main 
provider contract, however this is contributing to the CCG underlying deficit position 
of £5.6m as the contract baseline will be reset in 2019/20.  To date no Better Care 
Fund (BCF) or transformation schemes are supporting the level of deflections needed 
to address sustainable management or reduction of activity in line with the plan.

5.4.3 Mental health pressures continue into 2018-19 with a significant unplanned cost 
relating to additional bed days required to support the high level of delayed transfers 
of care within the mental health acute wards.  Work with Local Authority colleagues to 
address this has been ongoing which has brought the level of delayed transfers of 
care significantly down, however work is required to ensure that delays are 
maintained at minimum levels. 

5.5. QIPP Delivery

5.5.1 Table 4 below summarises the forecast QIPP delivery against target at month 6.  The 
recurrent impact of schemes is also noted in the table.  The total risk to the delivery 
of the £8.5m target is £3.4m, which largely relates to the unidentified gap.

Document Pack Page 26



23

Table 2: Summary of forecast QIPP delivery as at month 6

Area QIPP Target YTD Total Recurrent

Acute 2,150 8 1,074 2,100
Community 170 52 132 -
Intermediate Care 2,150 1,075 2,150 480
Mental Health 170 51 102 27
Prescribing 500 250 500 500
Primary Care 160 52 178 234
Running cost 300 100 200 200
Unidentified 2,890 - - -
Non recurrent mitigations - known - 2,490 2,490 -
Non recurrent mitigations - anticipated - - 1,664 -
Total 8,490 4,078 8,490 3,541

QIPP Tracker 2108/19

£000's

5.5.2 A thorough review of anticipated scheme financial delivery has taken place at month 
6.  The above table also reflects the delivery of non-recurrent mitigations brought into 
the YTD financial position.  This predominantly relates to the release of contingency 
balances, received allocations where costs were included in the baseline and funding 
received for costs incurred relating to transformation schemes. 

5.5.3 The risk to delivery of existing schemes and the identification of further schemes and 
mitigations is being managed and monitored and managed through the accelerated 
savings group on a regular basis.

5.6 Risk adjusted forecast outturn

5.6.1 The risk adjusted forecast outturn has reduced from £4m deficit at month 5 to £2m 
deficit at month 6, as improved assessments of the delivery of QIPP schemes are 
made and non-recurrent mitigations are confirmed.  Work continues to identify and 
manage further risks together with the identification of mitigations.  

Figure 1: Risk adjusted forecast outturn at month 6:

Document Pack Page 27



24

6.0 CAPITAL BUDGET

6.1 Capital Programme

6.1.1 The revised estimated budget for the Capital Programme 2018/19 as at the end of 
September 2018 is shown in the table below:

6.1.2 The expenditure and funding profile for the Capital Programme together with a 
detailed breakdown of the Original Approved Programme, the Revised Estimate, 
Forecast Outturn, Actual Spend to the end of Month 6, and the estimated under/over-
spend of the capital programme for 2018/19 is shown in Appendix A.

6.1.3 Members should note that given the complexity and size of some of the larger 
schemes currently in the Council’s Capital Programme the information received from 
budget holders can vary significantly from one quarterly report to the next and should 
be read in this context.

6.1.4 During this second quarter budget managers undertook a review of the programme 
and identified projects that will not start by the end of this financial year; this is due 
to the timing of planning, delivery capacity or pressures elsewhere in the programme.

6.1.5 The larger schemes in the programme were also reviewed to establish the actual cash 
flow requirement over the duration of their projected delivery and this is now aligned 
in the expected expenditure for this financial year. 

6.1.6 A total of £14.606m of the 2018/19 budget was agreed therefore to be shown as re-
profiled into 2019/20.  The majority of re-profiled funding relates to Children Services 
Projects where the schemes are funded mainly by grants from Department of 
Education, to a total of £9.819m. The remainder is attributable to Housing 
Development Schemes to a total of £2.308m and £1.9m for Highways maintenance 
and flood repair and defence projects.

6.1.7 The programme will continue to be reviewed at Qtr3 to ensure the estimated 
expenditure is reflected in the final budgets for the year.

6.2 Expenditure

6.2.1 The Forecast Outturn as at Month 6 is projected to be £40.933m and Budget 
Managers have reported that they expect to spend in accord to this by 31 March 
2019.

2018/19 £m

Original Capital Programme 25.368

Slippage from 2017/18 28.398

In year adjustments  1.480

Midyear review of Programme (14.606)
Revised Capital Allocation at Quarter 2 40.640

Estimated slippage into 2019/20 0

Revised working budget for Year at Qtr2 40.640

Document Pack Page 28



25

6.2.2 Actual expenditure after accruals that was realised by the end of Month 6 totals 
£12.980m.

6.2.3 The main areas to record expenditure for the first quarter are:

 Housing Development schemes £2.999m
 Children’s, Young People and Culture    £3.137m
 Property Development £0.554m
 Highways Schemes £2.908m
 Housing Public Sector  £3.132m

6.3. Variances

6.3.1 Appendix A provides details of variances for each scheme based on latest available 
information received from budget managers and at Month6 it shows a projected 
overspend for the Programme of £0.292m. 

6.3.2 This amount is not material in relation to the size of the programme and it is expected 
to reduce as schemes progress in year. 

6.3.3 All forecasted overspends are routinely monitored and analysed by budget managers 
and management accounts with remedial action initiated as soon as the risk is 
deemed to negatively affect the programme or its outcomes.

6.3.4 Brief reasons for all variances are provided in Appendix A, attached with this report.

6.4 Funding

6.4.1 The funding profile included in Appendix A shows the resources available to cover the 
capital programme during 2018/19.

6.4.2 The principal source of funding for Capital schemes approved for the 2018/19 
programme is external resources together with resources set aside and carried 
forward from previous years. 

6.4.3 The Council has approved in 2017/18 new allocations as part of a three year 
programme towards Highways Improvement works and in 2018/19 a budget for 
Neighbourhood working projects to a total value of £4.35m, funded by Council’s own 
resources through capital receipts and borrowing.

6.4.4 The position of the capital receipts and borrowing as at the end of Month 6 is reported 
below. The figures in the table show the total funding requirement for the revised 
estimated capital programme and the expected resources to be supported by the 
Council as at the end of Quarter 2 of the year.

Document Pack Page 29



26

6.5 Capital Programme Monitoring

6.5.1 The programme will continue to be monitored closely during the year by CPMG and 
Management Accountancy with an aim to identify any potential risks to delivery of 
schemes on cost and time. 

6.5.2 The review of the operational programme will ensure that re-profiled schemes into 
2019/20 (see paragraph 6.1.6) will benefit from a refined planning process and will 
aim to achieve a ‘true’ slippage target that is consequential only to factors outside the 
Council’s control.

7.0 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

7.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) relates to the operation of the Council’s housing 
stock and can be viewed as a landlord account. It is required by statute to be 
accounted for separately within the General Fund and is therefore effectively ring-
fenced. 

7.2 The latest estimates show a projected surplus (working balance carried forward) of 
£1.030m at the end of 2018/19. The projected outturn shows a deficit balance of 
£1.209m. See Appendix B.  

7.3 There are a number of variations that contribute to the projected outturn position but 
there are two significant areas where the variance exceeds 10% and £50k that have 
resulted in the projected deficit balance: 

 General Management - the projected outturn reflects the introduction of a 
£0.400m contribution to the authority’s Corporate and Democratic Core costs – 
this is an accepted charge to the HRA and has been identified as part of the 
review of Housing Services.

 Revenue contributions to capital – the contribution required to the costs of 
major works to the housing stock last year was significantly lower than the 
budget due to significant slippage on planned schemes. Subject to Council 
approval these resources are now required in 2018/19 to complete the 2017/18 
programme, the unspent resources in 2017/18 were transferred to the Business 
Plan Headroom Reserve on a temporary basis and will need to be released back 
to the HRA to maintain its minimum level of balances. 

2018/19  Use of Council Resources for Capital 
Investment £m
Revised Capital Programme allocation for the year 40.640
Use of external funding and contributions (23.269)
Balance of programme relying on Council 
resources

  
         17.371

Use of Capital receipts and earmarked reserves   5.098
Use of Prudential Borrowing (2018/19 approved 
schemes)   3.760
Use of Prudential Borrowing (2017/18 schemes 
brought forward)   8.513

Total Council Resources 
used to support the Capital Budget for Year 17.371

Document Pack Page 30



27

7.4 The main impacts on the HRA year end balance are normally void levels, the level 
of rent arrears and the level of Right to Buy sales.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Voids: 
The rent loss due to voids for April to September was on average 1.35% which is 
worse than the 1.2% void target level set in the original budget but a marked 
improvement on the 1st quarter performance. If this performance was to continue 
for the rest of the year there would be a reduction in rental income of £44k over 
the original budget; the projections of rental income in Appendix B have been 
calculated on this basis. 
 
Six Town Housing continue to review the voids processes and the various factors 
affecting demand. 

Arrears: 

The rent arrears at the end of September totalled £1.606m, an increase of 11% 
since the end of March. Of the total arrears £0.667m relates to former tenants and 
£0.939m relates to current tenants. An estimated £0.250m of current tenant 
arrears are in cases where either the under occupancy charge applies or the 
tenants are in receipt of Universal Credit rather than Housing Benefit.

The Council is required to make a provision for potential bad debts. The 
contribution for the year is calculated with reference to the type of arrear, the 
amount outstanding on each individual case and the balance remaining in the 
provision following write off of debts. 

Based on the performance to the end of September, projected for the full year, 
this provision would require an additional contribution of £0.249m to be made. 

The 2018/19 HRA estimates allow for additional contributions to the provision 
totalling £0.473m, £0.178m for uncollectable debts and £0.295m to reflect the 
potential impact that welfare benefit changes could have on the level of rent 
arrears. Therefore there is a potential underspend of £0.224m. The projected 
outturn has not been amended to reflect this as rent arrears are volatile and an 
increase in the numbers of Universal Credit cases is expected during the current 
financial year.

 Right to Buy Sales: 

From April 2012 the maximum Right to Buy discount increased from £26,000 to 
£75,000. 

This has resulted in an increase in the number of applications and ultimately sales. 
There were 55 sales in 2016/17 and this increased to 71 sales last year.  

The forecast for 2018/19 was set at 60, this being an increase of 15 on the level 
of sales assumed for Bury in the Government’s self–financing valuation.  

From July 2014 the maximum percentage discount on houses increased from 60% 
to 70% (in line with the discounts allowed on flats). The maximum discount now 
stands at £80,900.

From 26th May 2015 the qualifying period for Right to Buy was reduced from 5 
years to 3 years.

Document Pack Page 31



28

The number of sales has a direct effect on the resources available to the HRA – 
the average full year rent loss for each dwelling sold is around £3,700. 

The forecast was amended at quarter 1 from 60 to 70. There have been 24 sales 
in the period April to September. This is 9 less than at this point last year. The 
number of applications currently proceeding is very similar to this point last year. 
On this information the forecast has been revised back down to 60 and will be 
reviewed again at the end of quarter 3; the projections of rental income in 
Appendix B have been calculated on this basis.

 
7.5 The Welfare Reform and Work Act requires a 1% reduction in social housing rents for 

4 years from 2016/17 which has a significant impact on future HRA resources; it has 
been announced that following this period there will be a return to the previous rent 
policy i.e. increases of Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) plus 1%. 

8.0 PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR MONITORING

8.1 It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the 
“Affordable Borrowing Limits”. The authority’s approved Prudential Indicators 
(affordability limits) for 2018/19 is outlined in the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement.

8.2 The authority continues to monitor the Prudential Indicators on a quarterly basis and 
Appendix C shows the original estimates for 2018/19 (approved by Council on 21 
February 2018) with the revised projections as at 30 September, 2018. The variances 
can be seen in the Appendix together with explanatory notes. The Prudential 
Indicators were not breached during the first six months of 2018/19.

9.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT

9.1 Investments:

9.1.1 At the 30th September 2018 the Council’s investments totalled £4.8m and 
comprised:-

Type of Investment    £M
Call Investments (Cash equivalents) 3.6
Fixed Investments (Short term investments) 1.2

Total 4.8

9.1.2 All investments were made in line with Link’s suggested credit worthiness matrices 
and the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached 
during the first quarter of 2018/19. 

9.1.3 The Council has earned the following return on investments:
Quarter 1 0.50%
Quarter 2 0.61%

9.1.4 This figure is higher than Link’s suggested budgeted investment earnings rate for 
returns on investments, placed for periods up to three months in 2018/19, of 0.61%.

Document Pack Page 32



29

9.2 Borrowing:

9.2.1 External borrowing of £8.5m was undertaken in the quarter to 30th September 2018. 
5 short term temporary loans were taken to take advantage of low interest rates. The 
loans were required to replace 4 loans, totalling £12m, which matured in the first half 
of the year.

9.2.2 At 30th September 2018 the Council’s debts totalled £189.003m and comprised:-

  30 September 2018
  Principal Avg.
  £000 £000 Rate
Fixed rate funding 
 PWLB Bury 131,453   
 PWLB Airport 550   
 Market Bury 48,500 180,503  
Variable rate funding 
 PWLB Bury 0  0  
 Market Bury 0 0  
Temporary Loans / 
Bonds

8,500 8,500  

Total Debt  189,003 3.96%

9.2.3 The overall strategy for 2018/19 is to finance capital expenditure by running down 
cash/investment balances and taking shorter term borrowing rather than more 
expensive longer term loans. With the reduction of cash balances the level of short 
term investments will fall. Given that investment returns are likely to remain low for 
the financial year 2018/19, then savings will be made by running down investments 
and taking shorter term loans rather than more expensive long term borrowing.

9.2.4 It is anticipated that further borrowing will be undertaken during this financial year. 

10.0 MINIMUM LEVEL OF BALANCES

10.1 The actual position on the General Fund balance is shown in the following table:

£m

General Fund Balance 31 March 2018 per Accounts 7.549

Less : Minimum balances to be retained in 2018/19
Less : Forecast overspend at Month 6
Add: Contribution to General Fund balances per 2018/19 

Budget report

-4.250
-3.589

+2.811

Forecast Available Balances at 31 March 2019 2.521

10.2  Based on the information contained in this report, on the risk assessments that have 
been made at both corporate and strategic level, on the outturn position for 2018/19 
and using information currently to hand on the likely achievement of cuts options, 
there is no reason at present to take the minimum level of balances above the 

Document Pack Page 33



30

existing level of £4.250m.

10.3 In light of the above assessment it is recommended that the minimum level of 
balances be retained at £4.250m.

10.4 Members are advised that using available balances to fund ongoing expenditure would 
be a breach of the Council’s Golden Rules. Likewise, Members are advised that the 
Authority faces significant funding reductions in the future, and balances are likely to 
be required to fund one-off costs of service transformation.

11.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

11.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications.  

12.0 FUTURE ACTIONS

12.1 Budget monitoring reports will continue to be presented to the Strategic Leadership 
Team on a monthly basis and on a quarterly basis to the Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee and Audit Committee.

Councillor Eamonn O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing
________________________________________________________________

List of Background Papers:-
Finance Working Papers, 2018/19 held by the Interim Executive Director of Resources & 
Regulation.

Contact Details:-Steve Kenyon, Interim Executive Director of Resources & Regulation, Tel. 
0161 253 6922, E-mail: S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk

Document Pack Page 34

mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


Bury MBC: Capital Budget Monitoring Statement Appendix A
Month 6 -  2018/19 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (7) (8) (9)

2018/19
Original
Estimate

Slippage  Adjust-
ments

Midyear
review

Revised
Estimate
Before

Slippage

Slippage to
Future
Years

Revised
Estimate for

the year
Col.5-Col.6

Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

2018/19
Month 06
Actual

Month 6
Variance /
(Underspe

nd) or
Overspend
Col.7-Col.6

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Children, Young People & Culture DFES - Devolved Formula 461 738 (25) (927) 247 247 230 260 (17) L

Children, Young People & Culture NDS Modernisation 6,243 8,848 (51) (8,569) 6,470 6,470 6,516 2,975 45 L

Children, Young People & Culture Access Initiative 6 (6) 0 0 0 0 0 K

Children, Young People & Culture Targetted Capital Funds (76) (76) (76) - (138) 76 L

Children, Young People & Culture Free School Meal Capital Grant 22 22 22 - - (22) K

Children, Young People & Culture Early Education Fund 140 3 (113) 30 30 30 30 - K

Children, Young People & Culture Healthy Pupils Condition Fund 205 (205) - - - - - K

Children, Young People & Culture Protecting Play Fields 10 (0) 10 10 10 10 0 K

Communities & Wellbeing Environmental Works 85 0 (54) 31 31 31 - (0) K

Communities & Wellbeing Environmental Nuisance Measures 46 105 151 151 151 33 - K

Communities & Wellbeing Improving Info.Management 80 80 80 80 - - K

Communities & Wellbeing Parks 91 63 154 154 154 16 - K

Communities & Wellbeing Social Care Single Capital Pot / Older people 455 19 (474) 0 0 - (88) (0) K

Communities & Wellbeing Empty Property Strategy 405 405 405 382 23 (23) L

Communities & Wellbeing Neighbourhood Working 600 600 600 600 - - K

Communities & Wellbeing Housing development - Urban Renewal 5,719 100 (1,173) 4,646 4,646 4,652 2,724 6 K

Communities & Wellbeing Disabled Facilities Grant 968 700 273 (1,136) 806 806 800 251 (6) L

Communities & Wellbeing Waste Management 27 27 27 (27) L

Resources & Regulation Flood Repair & Defence 1,392 225 (450) 1,167 1,167 1,167 59 - K

Resources & Regulation Street Lighting LED Invest to Save 251 107 358 358 358 148 - K

Resources & Regulation Traffic Management Schemes 271 271 271 271 1 - K

Resources & Regulation Public Rights of Way 89 89 89 89 - K

Resources & Regulation Planned Maintenance 5,629 4,594 46 (1,500) 8,769 8,769 8,736 2,193 (33) K

Resources & Regulation Policy 9 25 34 34 34 - K

Resources & Regulation Bridges 119 119 119 119 5 - K

Resources & Regulation Traffic Calming and Improvement 497 497 497 497 157 - K

Resources & Regulation Prestwich Town Centre 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 345 - K

Resources & Regulation Environmental Projects 13 304 317 317 187 (317) L

Resources & Regulation Development Group Projects 11 29 40 40 - (40) L

Resources & Regulation Corporate ICT Projects 1,170 345 96 1,611 1,611 1,605 (6) K

Resources & Regulation Property Development 50 278 328 328 893 554 565 L

Resources & Regulation Property Management / Sale of Assets - - 92 87 92 J

Resources & Regulation ELR Trust - - 13 - K

Housing Public Sector Disabled Facilities Adaptations 100 100 100 100 137 (0) K

Housing Public Sector Housing programme Major works (HRA funded) 9,830 2,486 12,316 12,316 12,316 2,994 (1) J

Total Bury Council controlled programme 25,368 28,398 1,479 (14,606) 40,640 - 40,640 40,933 12,980 293

Funding position:
Capital Receipts 1,700 637 58 (6) 2,389 2,389 2,684
Reserve / Earmarked Capital Receipts 70 2,178 459 2,707 2,707 2,707
General Fund Revenue - 45 105 150 150 150
Housing Revenue Account - 700 700 700 700
Capital Grants/Contributions 10,018 12,237 847 (13,099) 10,003 10,003 10,003
HRA/MRA Schemes 9,830 2,586 - 12,416 12,416 12,416
Unsupported Borrowing 3,750 - 10 3,760 3,760 3,760
Unsupported Borrowing older schemes 10,015 (1,502) 8,513 8,513 8,513

25,368 28,398 1,479 (14,606) 40,640 - 40,640 40,933

Key for budget monitoring reports

Projected Overspend (or Income Shortfall) J
a major problem with the budget more than 10% and above £50,000 K
a significant problem with the budget more than 10% but less than £50,000 L
expenditure/income in line with budget
a significant projected underspend (or income
surplus) more than 10% but less than £50,000
a major projected underspend (or income surplus) more than 10% and above £50,000

Document Pack Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT Appendix B

April 2018 - September 2018

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Original Latest Projected Variation
Estimate Estimate Outturn Over/(Under)

          £ £ £ £
INCOME
   Dwelling rents 29,206,600 29,206,600 29,127,100 79,500 
   Non-dwelling rents 195,600 195,600 192,900 2,700 
   Heating charges 39,000 39,000 38,101 899 
   Other charges for services and facilities 935,900 935,900 935,700 200 
   Contributions towards expenditure 34,900 34,900 42,500 (7,600)

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   Total Income 30,412,000 30,412,000 30,336,301 75,699 

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
EXPENDITURE
   Repairs and Maintenance 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 
   General Management 831,000 831,000 1,201,548 370,548 
   Special Services 857,200 857,200 845,900 (11,300)
   Rents, rates, taxes and other charges                111,400 111,400 79,300 (32,100)
   Increase in provision for bad debts - uncollectable debts 178,400 178,400 178,300 (100)
   Increase in provision for bad debts - impact of Benefit Reforms294,900 294,900 294,500 (400)
   Cost of Capital Charge 4,625,600 4,625,600 4,597,600 (28,000)
   Depreciation/Impairment of fixed assets - council dwellings8,230,800 8,230,800 8,152,300 (78,500)
   Depreciation of fixed assets - other assets 51,100 51,100 43,602 (7,498)
   Debt Management Expenses 40,600 40,600 40,600 0 
  Contribution to/(from) Business Plan Headroom Reserve 107,700 107,700 107,700 0 

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   Total Expenditure 15,333,700 15,333,700 15,546,350 212,650 

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   Net cost of services (15,078,300) (15,078,300) (14,789,952) 288,348 

   Amortised premia / discounts (7,700) (7,700) (7,700) 0 
   Interest receivable - on balances (47,100) (47,100) (30,800) 16,300 
   Interest receivable - on loans (mortgages) 0 0 (310) (310)

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   Net operating expenditure (15,133,100) (15,133,100) (14,828,762) 304,338 

   Appropriations

   Appropriation relevant to Impairment 0 0 0 
   Revenue contributions to capital 1,744,500 1,744,500 3,679,600 1,935,100 

------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   (Surplus) / Deficit before ALMO/SHU payments (13,388,600) (13,388,600) (11,149,162) 2,239,438 

   Payments to Six Town Housing / Transfers re Strategic
   Housing Unit excluded from above

   Six Town Housing Management Fee 13,058,600 13,058,600 13,058,600 0 
   Contribution to SHU Costs 320,000 320,000 320,000 0 
  ------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------
   Total 13,378,600 13,378,600 13,378,600 0 

   (Surplus) / Deficit after ALMO/SHU payments (10,000) (10,000) 2,229,438 2,239,438 

   Working balance brought forward (1,020,000) (1,020,000) (1,020,000) 0 
------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------

   Working balance carried forward (1,030,000) (1,030,000) 1,209,438 2,239,438 
------------------ ------------------ ------------------------------------

key for budget monitoring reports
Projected Overspend (or Income Shortfall) of

a major problem with the budget  - more than 10% and above 50K

a significant problem with the budget - more than 10% but less than 50K

expenditure/income on line with budget

a significant projected underspend (or income surplus) - more than 10% but under 50K

a major projected underspend (or income surplus)  - more than 10% and above 50K

Document Pack Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Prudential Indicator Monitoring Month 6 2018/19   Appendix C

The table below shows the prudential indicators as derived from the Treasury 
Management Strategy Report for 2018/19 and the Original Budget for 2018/19 as 
approved at Council in February 2018. The Original Budget for 2018/19 is 
compared with the Forecast Outturn for 2018/19 as at 30th September 2018.

 Original Forecast   
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE Budget Outturn at Variance Notes

  2018/19
30 September 

2018   
  £'000 £'000   
Estimate of Capital Expenditure  
 Non-HRA 15,538 28,224 81.64%  
 HRA existing expenditure 9,830 12,416  
 TOTAL 25,368 40,640 1
   
Estimate of Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR)  
 Non-HRA 125,554 129,961 3.51%  
 HRA existing expenditure 40,531 40,531  
 HRA reform settlement 78,253 78,253 2
  244,338 248,745  3
 Original Forecast   
AFFORDABILITY Budget Outturn at Variance Notes

  2018/19

30 
September 

2018   
  £'000 £'000   
Estimate of incremental impact of capital 
investment decisions  

 
Increase in council tax (band D, per 
annum) £0.58 £2.88 4

 Increase in housing rent per week £0.00 £0.00  5
   
Ratio of Financing Costs to net revenue 
stream  
 Non-HRA 2.95% 2.96% 0.14% 6
 HRA 14.47% 14.24% (1.58%) 6
   
Net External Borrowing only to support the 
CFR in Medium Term £'000 £'000  
 Net External borrowing over medium term 176,006 176,006 7
 Total CFR over Medium Term 244,338 248,745 7
 Net External Borrowing < Total CFR TRUE TRUE  
      
 Original Forecast   
EXTERNAL DEBT Budget Outturn at Variance Notes

  2018/19
30 September 

2018   
  £'000 £'000   
Authorised limit of external debt  
 Borrowing 200,100 204,400  
 Other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000  
 HRA reform settlement 79,300 79,300  
 TOTAL 284,400 288,700 1.51% 8
Operational boundary  
 Borrowing 165,100 169,400  
 Other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000  
 HRA reform settlement 79,300 79,300  
 TOTAL 249,400 253,700 1.72% 8
      

Document Pack Page 39



 Original Forecast   
TREASURY MANAGEMENT Budget Outturn at Variance Notes

  2018/19

30 
September 

2018   
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure     

 
Net principal re fixed rate borrowing / 
investments 117% 117% 0.00% 9

    
Upper limit for variable rate exposure   

 
Net principal re variable rate borrowing / 
investments -17% -17% 0.00% 9

   
£10 m £10 m 10Upper limit for total principal sums invested for 

> 364 days  
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing at 30 
September 2018

Upper/lower 
limit Actual   

 Under 12 months 40% - 0% 10.15%   
 12 months and within 24 months 35% - 0% 5.10%   
 24 months and within 5 years 40% - 0% 4.59%   
 5 years and within 10 years 50% - 0% 13.53%   
 10 years and above 90% - 30% 66.63%   

Notes to the Prudential Indicators:

1. The original budget shows the approved Capital Programme 
expenditure of £25,368,000. The forecast outturn of £40,640,000 is 
higher than budget because of slippage from 2017/18. 

2. Following the Government announcement to reform the system of 
financing Council housing, the Authority had to pay the Department for 
Communities and Local Government £78.253m on the 28th March 2012. 
The Council financed this expenditure by PWLB loans.

3. Capital Financing Requirement relates to all capital expenditure – i.e. it 
includes relevant capital expenditure incurred in previous years.  The 
Capital financing requirement reflects the authority’s underlying need to 
borrow.

4. The finance costs related to the increases in capital expenditure impact 
upon Council tax. The increase in Council Tax reflects the level of 
borrowing to be taken in 2018/19 to finance current and previous years’ 
capital expenditure.

5. There is no direct impact of capital expenditure on housing rents as the 
housing rent is set according to Government formula.

6. The ratios for financing costs to net revenue stream for both General 
Fund and HRA have remained relatively stable.

  
7. To ensure that borrowing is only for a capital purpose and therefore 

show that the authority is being prudent this indicator compares the 
level of borrowing and capital financing requirement (CFR) over the 
medium term.  The level of borrowing will always be below the CFR.

Document Pack Page 40



8. The authorised limit and operational boundary are consistent with the 
authority’s plans for capital expenditure and financing.  The authorised 
limit is the maximum amount that the authority can borrow. 

9. The variable and fixed limits together look at the whole portfolio and 
will therefore together always show 100% exposure.  Variable interest 
rate limit can be positive or negative as investments under 364 days are 
classed as variable and are credit balances which are offset against debit 
variable loans.  The smaller the balance of investments, the more likely 
the variable limit will be positive as the variable loan debit balance will 
be higher than the credit investment balance offset against it. 

10.Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days have been set 
at £10 million.  The investment balance is estimated to be cash flow 
driven, however if the opportunity arises that surplus investment 
balances are available then advantage will be taken of favourable rates.

Document Pack Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: CABINET
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
COUNCIL

DATE: 14 NOVEMBER 2018
22 NOVEMBER 2018
28 NOVEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY – MID YEAR 
REVIEW 2018/19

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE & HOUSING

CONTACT OFFICER: STEPHEN KENYON, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
OF RESOURCES AND REGULATION

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

The report is within the public domain

SUMMARY: This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance 
with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management, 
and covers the following:

 An economic update for the 2018/19 financial year 
to 30 September 2018;

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy;

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the 
Capital Strategy, and prudential indicators;

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 
2018/19 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 
2018/19

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken 
during 2018/19

 A review of compliance with Treasury and 
Prudential Limits for 2018/19

OPTIONS & It is recommended that, in accordance with CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management, the report be noted.

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 43 Agenda Item 6



RECOMMENDED OPTION

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

Treasury Management is an integral part of 
the Council’s financial framework and it is 
essential that the correct strategy is adopted 
in order to ensure that best value is obtained 
from the Council’s resources and that assets 
are safeguarded.

Statement by Interim Executive 
Director of Resources and 
Regulation:

There are no wider resource implications

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: The report complies with the Council's 
financial regulation 5.7. The Council is 
required by statute to set and maintain a 
balanced budget. Careful management of 
the finances in year allows the Council to 
achieve this and this report provides a 
means for Members to carefully monitor 
the situation.                                       JH

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR: STEVE KENYON

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

14 November 14 November N/a N/a

Scrutiny Committee Council
22 November   28 November

Document Pack Page 44



1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, 
(CIPFA), issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As from 
2019/20, all authorities will be required to prepare a Capital Strategy which is 
intended to provide the following:-

 A high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services,

 An overview of how the associated risk is managed,

 The implications for future financial sustainability.

A report setting out our Capital Strategy will be taken to Council before 31st 
March 2019.

1.2 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 
during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management 
operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies 
being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially 
before considering optimising investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure 
that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of 
longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer 
term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 

Accordingly, treasury management is defined as:-
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit 
of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.

1.2 This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management (revised 2017). 

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows: 

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement 
which sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury 
management activities.

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out 
the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and 
objectives.

3. Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report 
and an Annual Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the 
previous year.

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and 
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the 
execution and administration of treasury management decisions.

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management 
strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the 
delegated body is: Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

1.3 This report fulfils the requirement to produce a mid-year review.

Document Pack Page 45



2.0 ECONOMIC UP-DATE (from Treasury Advisors)

2.1 Economic Performance to date

2.1.1 UK economic growth in the first half of 2018/19 was modest but sufficiently 
robust for the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to unanimously vote to increase 
the bank rate on 2nd August from 0.5% to 0.75%. 

2.1.2 Growth is expected to be around 1.5% in 2018, but the Bank of England August 
Quarterly Inflation Report forecast that growth will increase to 1.8% in 2019.

2.1.3 The Consumer Price Index (CPI) measure of inflation rose unexpectedly from 2.4% 
in June to 2.7% in August, but is expected to fall back to the 2% inflation target over 
the next two years given minimal increases in the bank rate. The MPC has indicated 
Bank Rate would need to be in the region of 1.5% by March 2021 for inflation to stay 
on track. 

2.1.4 Financial markets are currently pricing in the next increase in Bank Rate for second 
half of 2019.

2.2 Interest rate Forecasts and Outlook 

2.2.1 The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 

Link Asset Services undertook do not think that the MPC will increase Bank Rate in 
February 2019, ahead of the deadline in March for Brexit. They think the MPC is 
more likely to wait until August 2019, than May 2019, before the next increase, to be 
followed by further increases of 0.25% in May and November 2020 to reach 1.5%. 
However, the cautious pace of these limited increases is dependent on a reasonably 
orderly Brexit. 

2.2.2 The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is neutral. The 
balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates, are also 
even and are broadly dependent on how strong GDP growth is, how slowly 
inflation pressures subside, and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move 
forward positively. 

3.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY UP-DATE

3.1  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19 was 
approved by the Council on 21 February 2018. 

Document Pack Page 46



3.2 There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the 
position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes 
already approved. 

4.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS)

This part of the report is structured to update:
 The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
 How these plans are being financed;
 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 

indicators  and the underlying need to borrow; and
 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

4.1 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure
This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes 
since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget

 2018/19 2018/19
Capital Expenditure Original 

Estimate
Revised 
Estimate

 £m £m
Non-HRA 15.538 28.224
HRA 9.830 12.416
Total 25.368 40.640

The increase of the revised estimate over the original estimate is due to 
slippage from 2017/18 of £28.398m offset by estimated project reprofiling to 
2019/20 of £13.126m

4.2 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme

The table below shows the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure 
plans. The borrowing requirement shown will increase the underlying 
indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the 
repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision). This direct borrowing 
need may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury 
requirements.

2018/19 2018/19
Original Revised
Estimate EstimateCapital Expenditure

£m £m
Total capital 
expenditure 25,368 40,640

Financed by:   

Capital receipts 1,770 5,096
Capital grants 10,018 10,003
Capital reserves   
Revenue 9,830 13,266

Total financing 21,618 28,365

Borrowing requirement 3,750 12,275

Document Pack Page 47



4.2 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing 
Requirement, External Debt and the Operational Boundary

The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur 
borrowing for a capital purpose.  It also shows the expected debt position over 
the period, which is termed the Operational Boundary.

 2018/19 2018/19
 Original 

Estimate
Revised 
Estimate

 £m £m
Prudential Indicator - Capital Financing Requirement
CFR – non HRA 125.554 129.961
CFR – HRA existing 40.531 40.531
Housing Reform Settlement 78.253 78.253
Total CFR 244.338 248.745
   
Prudential Indicator - External Debt / the Operational Boundary
Borrowing 244.400 248.700
Other long term liabilities 5.000 5.000
Total 249.400 253.700

4.3 Limits to Borrowing Activity

4.3.1 The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure 
that over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will 
only be for a capital purpose.  Gross external borrowing should not, except in the 
short term, exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional CFR for 2018/19 and next two financial years.  This allows some 
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council has approved 
a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this proves 
prudent.  

4.3.2 The Interim Executive Director of Resources reports that no difficulties are 
envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential 
indicator.  

4.3.3 A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the 
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected maximum borrowing need with 
some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory limit 
determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 2018/19 2018/19

Document Pack Page 48



Authorised Limit for External Debt Original 
Indicator

Revised 
Indicator

 £m £m
Borrowing 279.400 283.700
Other long term liabilities 5.000 5.000
Total 284.400 288.700

4.3.4 The chart below shows the projected trend of the Council’s Prudential 
Indicators.

193
176 166 165

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
100

150

200

250

300

350

External Debt
Capital Financing
Requirement
Operational Boundary
Authorised Limit

M
ill
io
ns

5.0 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2018/19

5.1 In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of 
capital and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is 
consistent with the Council’s risk appetite.  As set out in Section 2, it is a very 
difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates 
commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the 
0.75% Bank Rate.  The continuing potential for a re-emergence of a Eurozone 
sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term 
strategy.  Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank Rate 
are likely to be gradual and unlikely to return to the levels seen in previous 
decades, investment returns are likely to remain low.

5.2 The Council held £4.8m of investments as at 30 September 2018 (£18.5m at 31 
March 2018) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the 
year is 0.61% against Link’s suggested investment earnings rate for returns on 
investments placed, for periods up to three months in 2018/19, of 0.61%.

5.3 The investments held as at 30 September were:-
Type of Investment    £ Million
Call Investments (Cash equivalents) 3.6
Fixed Investments (Short term investments) 1.2

Total 4.8

5.4 The Interim Executive Director of Resources & Regulation confirms that the 
approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during 
the first six months of 2018/19.

Document Pack Page 49



5.5 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2018/19 is £0.5m, and 
performance for the year to date is in line with the budget.

5.6 The Cabinet have approved a “Property Investment Strategy” which aims to 
increase investment income by investing in property rather than investing with 
financial institutions where returns are low at present. Additional borrowing may 
need to be undertaken to finance property acquisitions; each investment will be 
subject to a robust business case and also non-financial factors (e.g. ethical 
stance) will be considered.

6.0 BORROWING

6.1 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2018/19 is £248.7m.  The 
CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  If the 
CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external 
borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  
The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market 
conditions. The table below shows the Council has borrowings of £189.0m and 
has utilised £59.7m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing. This is a prudent and 
cost effective approach in the current economic climate but will require ongoing 
monitoring in the event that upside risk to gilt yields prevail.

  1 April 2018 30 September 2018
  Principal Avg. Principal Avg.
  £000 £000 Rate £000 £000 Rate

        Fixed rate funding Fixed rate funding 
 PWLB 

Bury
131,453 131,453   

 PWLB 
Airport

554 550   

 Market 
Bury

60,500 192,507 48,500 180,503  

    Variable rate funding   Variable rate funding 
 PWLB 

Bury
0 0   

 Market 
Bury

0 0 0  

Temporary 
Loans / 
Bonds

2,003 8,500 8,500  

Total Debt 194,510 3.96%  189,003 3.96%
  
Total 
Investments

21,250 0.24% 4,800 0.61%

     

6.2 External borrowing of £8.5million has been undertaken from the market during 
the first 6 months of 2018/19. 5 short term temporary loans were taken to take 
advantage of low interest rates. The loans were required to replace 4 loans, 
totalling £12m, which matured in the first half of the year.
Additional external borrowing will be required during the remainder of this 
financial year. 

6.3 The graph below shows the movement in PWLB certainty rates for the first six 
months of the year to 30.09.17: 

Document Pack Page 50



            

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
3.4.18 1.48% 1.84% 2.22% 2.55% 2.27%
30.9.18 1.55% 1.93% 2.33% 2.74% 2.56%

Low 1.28% 1.67% 2.09% 2.50% 2.25%
Date 01/06/2018 29/05/2018 20/07/2018 20/07/2018 29/05/2018
High 1.57% 1.99% 2.43% 2.83% 2.64%
Date 17/04/2018 25/09/2018 25/04/2018 25/09/2018 25/09/2018

Average 1.46% 1.84% 2.25% 2.64% 2.41%

7.0 DEBT RESCHEDULING

7.1 Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 
climate given the consequent structure of interest rates. No debt rescheduling 
was undertaken during the first six months of 2018/19.

Councillor Eamonn O’Brien
Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing 

List of Background Papers:-
None

Contact Details:-
Stephen Kenyon, Interim Executive Director of Resources, Tel 0161 253 5002
E-mail s.kenyon@bury.gov.uk

Document Pack Page 51

mailto:s.kenyon@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MEETINGS: Audit Committee
Cabinet
Council

DATE: 20th September 2018

SUBJECT: Risk Management Annual Report 2017/18

REPORT FROM: Councillor Eamonn O’Brien - Cabinet Member for 
Finance & Housing

CONTACT OFFICER: David Hipkiss, Risk & Governance Manager

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL - KEY DECISION

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain

SUMMARY: The Risk Management Annual Report provides Members 
with details of risk management activity that has taken 
place over the past 12 months.  It outlines risk 
management policies and practices now in place and the 
key issues that will be addressed during the coming 
financial year.  

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Members are requested to re-affirm their support for the 
Council’s approach to Risk Management, and note 
progress made throughout 2017/18 and actions planned 
for 2018/19.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

See Executive Director of Resources & 
Regulation comment below

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources:

There are no direct resource implications 
arising from this report.

Risk management is an integral part of the 

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION
Agenda
Item

Document Pack Page 53 Agenda Item 7



Council’s approach to Corporate Governance 
and service and financial planning and it is 
essential that robust risk management 
practices are put in place to safeguard the 
Council’s assets and its reputation.

Corporate, departmental and operational risk 
assessments have been undertaken and key 
elements of the resultant Management Action 
Plans are incorporated into Departmental 
Service Plans.

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes (Governance Panel)

Are there any legal implications? No

Staffing/ICT/Property: 
There are no direct HR, IT or property 
implications arising from this report.

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Audit Committee Partners

20th September 
2018

Overview & Scrutiny Councillors Cabinet Council
14th November 

2018
28th November 

2018

2

Document Pack Page 54



1.0 BACKGROUND AND RISK PRIORITIES DURING 2017/18

1.1 The Cabinet approved the Council’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy 
in March 2006 which is reviewed annually.

Risk Priorities 2017/18

1.2 The Council continued to experience reduced funding, and increased 
demand for services, both placing pressure on the Council’s budget, and 
regularly reported to Cabinet, Scrutiny, and Audit Committee.  

1.3 An ongoing review of all the Council’s Corporate and Service Business 
Continuity Plans including the Council’s organisational structures that 
support these plans.

1.4 Understanding the implications and preparing as much in advance of the 
new Data Protection Legislation (GDPR) coming into force May 2018.

2.0 IMPLEMENTING RISK MANAGEMENT 

2.1 Risk management forms an integral part of strategic planning in the 
Council, ensuring early intervention and management of uncertainty in 
delivering key strategic priorities.   

2.2 Early intervention and assessment of risks ensures that departments are 
able to fully prepare for existing and emerging priorities, and manage 
their objectives effectively against financial, reputational and performance 
risks, whilst meeting Team Bury and the Council’s Corporate Priorities.

2.3 This approach to risk management ensures a continuous and evolving 
process that runs throughout the council’s core functional activities at all 
levels.

“Good risk management supports accountability, performance 
measurement and reward, thus promoting operational efficiency 
at all levels”. A Risk Management Standard – Institute of Risk 
Management.

2.4 Risk Assessment Action Plan Registers (RAAP’s) are used across 
departments to record identified risks and opportunities, and actions being 
taken. RAAP Registers as they are referred to throughout this report are 
used at all levels throughout the Council to record information and help 
manage Corporate, Departmental, and Operational risks. 

2.5 RAAP’s are an effective tool to identify, evaluate and manage areas of 
uncertainty and exploit opportunities at corporate, departmental and 
operational levels and to ensure achievement of the Council’s aims and 
objectives.

2.6 The Council’s risk management framework is outlined in summary below;

3

Document Pack Page 55



 An approved Corporate Policy & Strategy for Risk Management that 
can be read online or downloaded

 A Corporate Policy & Strategy that details the Council’s approach to 
managing risk focussing on three key lines of defence that enables 
direct input, strategic overview and scrutiny at all levels from officers, 
senior management, governance groups and independent review 
bodies.

These three lines of defence ensure:

Effective Operational Management – Defence Level 1 - Having clear 
lines of responsibility/ownership, clear and accessible risk reporting 
and communication lines, up to date policies, procedures, guidance 
and training material and having in place a consistent approach to 
assessing and managing risk across the Council.

A clear management oversight – Defence Level 2 -  That is clear 
about the risk management framework and actively taking place, 
oversees and manage risk both at strategic and operational levels. 

Independent internal audit and scrutiny – Defence Level 3 – 
Actively engaged, involved and challenging current working 
practices at all levels having direct access at operational, senior 
management and governing team levels.

 Key strategic and corporate governing groups that are actively 
engaged in the risk management process ensure an objective review of 
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control both at 
strategic and operational level.

o Senior Leadership Team (Senior Officers of the Council)
o Corporate Risk Management Group (Member Level)
o Operational Risk Management Group (Officer Level)
o Governance Panel comprising:

 Executive Director of Resources & Regulation
 Assistant Director for Legal & Democratic Services
 Head of Financial Management

 The Risk Management Framework is supported by up to date guidance 
and training material, accessible to all staff:

4

Operational
Management

Management Oversight

Independent Oversight

Document Pack Page 56



o Comprehensive Intranet Risk Management Website and Toolkit
o Corporate Risk / Opportunity Assessment Action Plan Register
o Departmental Strategic Risk Assessment Action Plan Registers
o Operational Risk Assessment Action Plan Registers – held by 

service managers and maintained as part of the day to day 
management of service provision

o A Common Risk Register (General good practice guide)
o Dedicated Risk Management Section – Operating from Strategic 

Finance alongside but independent from Internal Audit
o A working in Partnership Risk Assessment Model (PRAM) that 

provides a platform to manage risk working with other 
partners/organisations.

2.7 Also in place is an effective communication and risk reporting network, 
with regular reports to:

 Full Council (annual report)
 Audit Committee
 Strategic Leadership Team
 Corporate Risk Management Group (Members)
 Operational Risk Management Group (Officers)
 Business Continuity Management representatives 
 All departments and Service Heads

2.7 The diagram at Appendix A has been drawn up to help demonstrate Bury 
Council’s risk management processes, illustrating strategic and 
operational planning across the authority, also the delivery of service and 
the movement and reporting of risks associated with these two key risk 
drivers within each of the departments.  

3.0 DEPARTMENTAL PROGRESS 2017/18

3.2 Children, Young People & Culture

2017/18 managed high risks focused upon;

 Demand pressures on available resources
 Budget constraints following large scale reductions
 Capacity to deliver services
 Legal challenges and reputational risks
 School roles changing – System Leadership Model
 Changing Government Legislation
 Impact of Academies 
 Children & Young People in care
 Safeguarding mechanisms

Despite some success during 2017/18, the department is still 
highlighting a number concerns reflected by the final quarters result.  
Individual Departmental Risk Registers are available on request.

3.3 Communities & Wellbeing

2017/18 managed high risks focused upon;

 High cost packages relating to Children’s transition cases

5

Document Pack Page 57



 Reducing budgets faced with increasing demands
 Lack of growth investment
 Cuts in Public Health Budgets
 Sickness and absence
 Business Continuity
 Improve/re-develop skills mix
 Commissioning functions between CCG and Council
 IT development
 GDPR
 Subject Access Requests
 Freedom of Information Requests
 Changes in legislation
 Growing demands – increasing population
 Safeguarding
 Unoccupied buildings
 Health & Safety
 Changes in welfare reform and consequences
 Development of new types of social enterprise
 Target reviews and assessments not met

Despite some success during 2017/18 with managing these risks, the 
department is still highlighting a number of concerns reflected by the 
final quarters risk review.  Individual Departmental Risk Registers are 
available on request.

3.4 Resources & Regulation

2017/18 focussed on a number of high risks, these include:

 Responding effectively to significant funding reductions
 Ongoing welfare reforms
 Acadamisation of schools 
 Brexit
 Changes to Business Rates Retention Scheme
 Resident expectations
 Opportunities presented by the GM Devolution Agenda and wider 

Public Service Reform

Owing to the nature and wider impact of these risks on public service they 
are also reflected within the Corporate Risk Register.

4.0 CORPORATE RISKS

4.1 The Corporate Risk Assessment Action Plan records all risks posing the 
most serious threat to the Council, risks that would impact upon a wider 
range of services and that are not able to be managed effectively within a 
directorate.  These risks are reviewed continually by the Strategic 
Leadership Team – both through quarterly reviews, and as agenda items 
in their own right.  The Corporate Risk Register takes account of risk 
management activity taking place across departments allowing for the 
transfer of high risk and also of known future risk. 

4.2 Member input is sought throughout the year via the Corporate Risk 
Management Group, and quarterly reports to the Audit Committee.

6

Document Pack Page 58



4.3 The table overleaf tracks the status of corporate risks throughout 
2017/18.  

7

Document Pack Page 59



Corporate Risk Register 2017/18 – As at 31st March 2018

Raw Risk Score Mitigation Measures / Assurance Levels Risk 
Conclusion

Residual Risk ScoreRisk Risk Owner

Li
ke

lih
oo

d Im
pa

ct

Pr
ox

im
ity

Sc
or

e

Target 
Risk 

Score

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Li
ke

lih
oo

d Im
pa

ct

Pr
ox

im
ity

Sc
or

e

Direction of 
Travel

The Council 
doesn’t agree 
a balanced 
budget

Cabinet / 
SLT

4 4 4 6
4

LOW The Council has a 
4 year financial 
forecast covering 
2016/17 to 
2019/20 in line 
with the 
Government’s 4 
year funding 
offer.

Budget options 
have now been 
approved (Feb 
17) covering a 3 
year period, 
recognising the 
lead in times for 
the development 
of options.

Budget forecasts 
will continue to 
be reviewed on a 
12 month rolling 
forecast; or as 
new information 
come to light.

Budget options 
validated by the 
Councils Strategic 
Leadership Team, 
and through 
regular meetings 
with Portfolio 
Holders.

Budget proposals 
were considered 
by the Overview 
& Scrutiny 
Committee prior 
to approval.

Currently no 
reliance being 
placed on 
reserves, 
however this is 
the second year 
an overspend is 
predicted.

Future years 
equally 
challenging. 

Council needs to 
consider 
alternative 
approaches to 
budget setting.

External Audit 
Opinion on 
VFM / 
Financial 
Standing

Manage 2 4 4 32

Risk 
increased 
from last 
quarter

8

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 60



The Council 
cannot deliver 
cuts approved 
in the budget

Cabinet / 
SLT

4 4 4 6
4

LOW Robust budget 
monitoring 
procedures are in 
place, given early 
warning of 
potential 
pressures.

Challenges of 
delivering 
continuous 
budget cuts with 
reduced 
organisational 
capacity.

Control measures 
in place to 
mitigate 
overspend 
pressures where 
possible.

Final outturn is 
an overspend of 
£844k.

Budget monitoring 
reports are 
considered every 
month by SLT, and 
reported quarterly 
to Cabinet.

SLT and the 
Cabinet meet 
regularly to discuss 
progress with the 
in year budget.

Monitoring reports 
consider a RAG 
rating for delivery 
of cuts 

Finance Portfolio 
Holder now “calling 
in” specific 
business areas to 
investigate issues.

Monitoring reports 
are also considered 
quarterly at;

 SLT / 
Cabinet

 Overview & 
Scrutiny

 Audit Cttee

Increasingly 
considering 
“Invest to Save” 
options.

Additional 
resources available 
for Adult Social 
Care – via precept 
& Government

External 
Audit 
Opinion on 
VFM / 
Financial 
Standing.

Manage 4 4 4 64
No 
change to 
risk score

9

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 61



Resilience and 
capacity of 
services is 
jeopardised by 
ongoing 
funding 
reductions

SLT 4 4 4 6
4

LOW Budget options 
consider 
operational 
impact, and are 
subject to 
separate risk 
assessments.

The Council 
undertakes 
workforce 
planning to 
ensure the right 
staff are in place, 
with the right 
skills at the time 
needed.

Recruitment & 
Retention of staff 
presents a 
challenge in 
some service 
areas.

There is a 
dedicated 
workstream 
looking at HR / 
OD as the Council 
moves to OCO / 
LCO operating 
arrangements 
with the NHS.

Business continuity 
plans exist for all 
services

The Council 
received minimal 
transition funding 
from the 
Government 
compared to other 
GM authorities.

The Council has 
access to 
transformation 
funding under GM 
Health & Social 
Care arrangements

Greater use of 
interim placements 
to address time 
limited pressures / 
work tasks e.g. 
Growth / 
Regeneration and 
Traded Services

External 
Audit 
Opinion on 
VFM / 
Financial 
Standing

External 
reviews, e.g. 
OFSTED / 
CQC

Resident 
satisfaction 
levels

Manage 4 4 4 64

No 
change to 
risk score

10

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 62



Changes to 
the Business 
Rates 
Retention 
scheme 
(100%) 
impact 
adversely on 
the Council – 
e.g. appeals

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Finance & 
HR / 
Interim 
Executive 
Director 
of 
Resources 
& 
Regulatio
n

3 4 4 4
8

LOW The Council 
makes “in year” 
provision for the 
impact of appeals 
when estimating 
yield (NNDR1), 
and also makes 
provision within 
the annual 
revenue budget.

In addition, the 
Council holds a 
reserve to fund 
the backdating 
(i.e. one-off) 
effect of appeals.  

Risk of appeals is 
heightened under 
100% retention 
(although 
protection for 
2017/18 pilot); 
also likely to be 
increased 
incidence of 
appeals in light of 
2017 revaluation

Impact of 
business failure 
also increases, 
however 
mitigated 
through work of 
Business 
Engagement 
Team

The Council 
maintains an active 
dialogue with the 
Valuation Office 
Agency to ensure 
that appeals are 
dealt with in a 
timely manner. 

The Council 
participates in the 
GM Collection Fund 
Accounting Group.

Pilot exercise 
underway to tackle 
aged debt.

The Council’s 
External 
Auditors 
review the 
Council’s 
Collection 
Fund, and 
Appeals 
Provisions as 
part of the 
annual audit 
process.

Manage 3 4 4 48
No 
change to 
risk score

11

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 63



Ongoing 
Welfare 
Reforms place 
additional 
pressure on 
both residents 
and the 
Council

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Strategic 
Housing & 
Support 
Services / 
Interim 
Executive 
Director 
of 
Resources 
& 
Regulatio
n

4 4 4 6
4

LOW Regular 
monitoring of 
the impact of 
reforms is 
undertaken.

Increased risk 
due to revised 
CTS scheme, 
and increased 
Council Tax 
(necessary to 
fund Adult 
Social Care)

Increasing 
reliance on 3rd 
Sector, which 
itself faces 
funding 
reductions

Concerns over 
security of 
employment 
and uncertain 
economic 
outlook

The impact of 
reforms is 
reported through 
the Welfare 
Reform Board.

The Council is 
currently 
updating its 
Poverty Strategy, 
and assessing 
how fuel poverty 
for Council 
tenants can be 
addressed

The Cabinet has 
now endorsed an 
Anti-Poverty 
Strategy, and 
additional 
resources 
(£200k) have 
been allocated to 
address poverty 
related issues.

The Council has 
endorsed a 
motion to 
develop a Young 
Savers scheme.

There is 
close 
liaison with 
Partner 
organisatio
ns, e.g. 
CAB, Six 
Town 
Housing to 
assess and 
mitigate 
the impact 
of reforms.  

The Council 
is an active 
member of 
the 
Manchester 
Credit 
Union.

Manage 4 4 4 64
No 
change to 
risk score

12

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 64



Ongoing 
academisation 
of schools 
impacts upon 
income levels 
for traded 
services

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Children & 
Families / 
Executive 
Director 
of 
Children, 
Young 
People & 
Culture

3 4 3 3
6

LOW Traded services 
are currently 
undergoing a 
comprehensive 
review to assess 
the impact of 
academy 
conversions.

Requires more 
proactive 
management as 
risk of schools 
not buying-back 
increases

Risk heightened 
by pressures on 
school budgets

The Council has a 
good relationship 
with schools, and a 
high level of buy-
back.

Where possible, 
and viable, 
services will 
continue to be 
traded to schools 
that undergo 
academy 
conversion.

The 
relationship 
with schools 
is managed 
proactively 
through the 
Schools 
Forum.

Working 
group set up 
to explore 
further 
opportunities 
for providing 
competitive 
traded 
services

Additional 
resources in 
place, and 
pricing offers 
sent to 
schools.

Manage 4 4 3 48
No 
change to 
risk score

Unknown 
implications of 
the Brexit 
referendum 
impact 
adversely 
upon the 
Council

Cabinet / 
SLT

4 4 4 6
4

M
ED

IU
M

The most 
significant risk is 
the uncertainty of 
the implications 
of Brexit – 
notably economic 
conditions.

Potential impact 
on the pound, 
inflation, and 
impact upon Bury 
businesses

The Council makes 
use of external 
brokers (Link) who 
offer advice on 
economic 
conditions and the 
Council’s Treasury 
Management.

Other 
professional 
networks are 
utilised, e.g. 
GM 
Treasurers 
Group

Regular 
“Brexit 
Monitors” 
are received 
from the 
GMCA

Accept 4 4 4 64 No 
change to 
risk score

13

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 65



The Council is 
unable to 
manage 
customer / 
resident 
demands and 
expectations 
in the light of 
funding 
reductions

Cabinet / 
SLT

4 4 3 4
8

LOW The Council has 
previously written 
to all residents 
advising them of 
the impact of 
funding 
reductions.

Further 
communication 
required e.g. 
resident briefings

Public meetings 
are held each year 
as part of the 
budget 
consultation 
process.

Public engagement 
necessary to move 
forward with 
Neighbourhood 
working models / 
contract with 
residents

Focus of 
Neighbourhood 
working model is 
to facilitate and 
empower residents 
and communities, 
and assist with 
capacity building.

The role of 
elected 
members is 
critical as 
they provide 
an interface 
between 
residents 
and the 
Council

Manage 4 4 4 64 No 
change to 
risk score

The Council’s 
growth 
strategy is 
impeded by 
external 
influences, 
e.g. economic 
conditions

Leader / 
Chief 
Executive

3 4 3 3
6

LOW The Council has a 
clear Growth 
Strategy in place

GMSF timescales 
now revised to 
2018

Economic 
uncertainty may 
stifle growth.
 

Growth Strategy 
has been agreed at 
both Council and 
Partner level (Bury 
Wider Leadership 
Group).

Second report to 
Cabinet – 
November 2017 
outlining delivery 
plan.

Interim resource 
recruited (20 
months) to 
oversee delivery of 
plan

The Council 
actively 
promotes 
development 
opportunities 
nationally, 
and engages 
with GM 
activity to 
promote the 
region.

Work is also 
taking place 
with 
employers 
and students 
through the 
Bury Skills 
Commission

Manage 3 3 3 27
No 
Change to 
risk score

14

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 66



Population 
growth and 
age profile 
lead to service 
demands 
exceeding 
Council 
capacity / 
resources.

Cabinet / 
SLT

4 4 3 4
8

LOW The Council has 
adopted the 
Social Care 
Precept 
(2017/18) to 
channel 
additional 
resources to 
pressures in 
Adult Social Care.

Continuing 
pressures in the 
NHS will impact 
upon the 
Council’s services

Further funding 
for Social Care 
now made 
available

Complexity and 
long term nature 
of conditions an 
increasing 
pressure

Fragile market of 
care providers

A number of 
initiatives are in 
place aimed at 
early intervention, 
and self care e.g. 
reablement, 
wellbeing service

The Bury Locality 
has secured £19m 
transformation 
funding to redesign 
care models 

Social Care 
demands have 
been clearly 
outlined in the 
Council’s Fair 
Funding 
submission.

Close 
working 
takes place 
with 
partners in 
the CCG and 
key 
providers to 
mitigate 
demand 
pressures.

Development 
of LCO / 
OCO working 
model

Manage 4 4 4 64 No 
Change to 
risk score

15

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 67



Ability to 
maintain core 
functions 
(statutory & 
non-statutory) 
e.g. 
safeguarding 
is impeded by 
funding 
reductions.

Cabinet / 
SLT

2 4 3 2
4

LOW The budget setting 
process reflects to a 
degree the statutory 
nature of services 
when allocating cuts 
targets

Further work needs 
to be undertaken to 
reflect prioritisation 
of resources

Additional resources 
now available for 
Adult Social Care

Narrative revised to 
reflect that both 
statutory and 
discretionary 
functions are now at 
risk.

Directors prioritise 
spend to ensure 
statutory 
obligations are 
fulfilled – this is 
done through the 
Cash ceiling / 
virement scheme.

External Audit 
Opinion on 
VFM / 
Financial 
Standing

Corporate 
Parenting / 
Health 
Scrutiny

External 
reviews, e.g. 
OFSTED / CQC 
– NB action 
plan being 
developed in 
light of recent 
OFSTED 
inspection.

Manage 2 4 3 24 No 
Change to 
risk score

Health & 
Social Care 
integration 
does not 
reform 
services and 
deliver 
required 
efficiency 
savings

Cabinet 
Member 
for Health 
& 
Wellbeing 
/ 
Executive 
Director 
of 
Communit
ies & 
Wellbeing

3 4 4 4
8

LOW The Council and CCG 
work closely 
together and 
operate pooled 
budgets in some 
areas (Better Care 
Fund).

The Council and CCG 
management teams 
meet jointly on a 
regular basis.

Capacity to develop 
arrangements is a 
risk, however the 
Bury Locality has 
now secured £19m 
transformation 
funding to mitigate 
this

The Council is 
working towards 
development of a 
single 
commissioning 
organisation 
(OCO); similarly, it 
is proposed to 
operate a Local 
Care Alliance (LCA) 
in shadow form 
from  April 2018.

The Health 
integration project 
has clearly defined 
governance 
arrangements and 
its own project risk 
register

Partnership 
working takes 
across the 
broader Public 
Service 
footprint.  

Requires a 
multi-agency 
approach to 
encourage 
behaviour 
change.

Staff of the 
Council and 
CCG are co-
locating to aid 
joint working.

Manage 3 4 4 48 No 
Change 
to risk 
score

16

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 68



GM approach 
to devolution 
does not 
reform 
services and 
deliver 
required 
efficiency 
savings

Leader / 
Chief 
Executive 

2 4 3 2
4

LOW The Council is an 
equal partner in 
AGMA / CA, and 
engages actively 
through regular GM 
meetings at officer 
level. 

Need to ensure 
democratic / 
governance 
processes preserve 
local accountability 

Need to look beyond 
Health & Social Care 
and examine where 
joint working can 
offer wider 
efficiencies

This is 
supplemented by a 
comprehensive 
schedule of 
meetings at 
member level.

Mature joint 
working 
arrangements 
developed in 
respect of Health & 
Social Care 
Devolution

Clear emerging 
roles around 
Transport, 
congestion and Air 
Quality

Elected Mayor 
now in place, 
with key 
positions held 
by Bury 
elected 
members

Manage 1 3 3 9 Risk 
Reduced

Risk Scoring Matrix
Likelihood 1 (low) – 4 (high)
Impact 1 (low) – 4 (high)
Proximity 1 (low) – 4 (high)
Maximum Score 4 x 4 x 4 = 64

Low Risk 0 - 20

Medium Risk 21 – 40

High Risk 41 - 64

17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 69



5.0 CHALLENGES FOR 2018/19 

5.1 The challenge for the coming year will be to ensure risk and business 
continuity management form an integral part of the council’s response to 
continued spending reductions, ensuring threats and opportunities to 
service provision are managed effectively and service resilience is 
maintained throughout.

5.2 Economic conditions continue to have an adverse impact on income levels 
in Departments, notably Resources & Regulation (Property and parking 
fees). The risk is recognised in the assessment of the minimum level of 
balances and will continue to be closely monitored throughout 2018/19.

5.3 Budgets in respect of Children’s Social Care remain under pressure in the 
light of the increased emphasis on child protection nationally. Likewise, 
pressures remain in Adult Care Services in respect of an increasing elderly 
population and Learning Disability care packages. Controls are in place to 
ensure appropriate care packages are provided, and improved 
procurement activity ensures these are obtained at competitive rates. This 
situation will continue to be closely monitored during 2018/19.

5.3 The following areas will be our main priority for 2018/19:

 Ensuring risk and business continuity management forms an integral 
part of service planning, performance and the delivery of objectives in 
light of increased agile working and public service reforms.   

 Ensuring the Council is fully compliant with all requirements of the new 
Data Protection Legislation

 Building upon the work started by Strategic Leadership Team where 
key corporate risks are considered in depth alongside the quarterly 
review process.

 Continuing to raise Member involvement in risk management and 
business continuity.

 Maintaining the Business Continuity Planning Database to ensure it 
maintains good quality information relating to service priorities and 
their continuity arrangements.

 Continuing to strengthen risk management arrangements in key 
strategies such as the Medium Term Financial Strategy (Efficiency 
Plan), the Workforce Development Strategy, and the Asset 
Management Strategy.

 Continuing the development of risk reporting and monitoring 
processes.

 Strengthening risk management arrangements at operational level and 
with partnership arrangements.

 Ensure risk management focus is widened to better understand, 
manage and take advantage of opportunity risk as well as managing 
potential risk threats

 Benchmarking with other public and private sector organisations 
 Strengthen service resilience against disruption through effective risk 

and business continuity management.
 Aligning the quarterly reporting of risk, performance and the Council’s 

financial position.
 Proactively responding to the risks, challenges and opportunities 

presented by the GM devolution agenda, and ensuring Bury interests 
are safeguarded

18

Document Pack Page 70



6.0 CONCLUSIONS

Considerable progress continues to be made in the area of risk 
management and in embedding the approach to risk management into the 
authority’s processes and culture.  However there is no room for 
complacency and this subject will continue to be given significant 
attention over the coming twelve months.

Background documents:

Risk Management Policy, toolkit & risk registers - maintained on Intranet.

For further information on the contents of this report, please contact:

David Hipkiss, Risk and Information Governance Manager
Tel: 0161 253 6677         e-mail: D.Hipkiss@bury.gov.uk

19

Document Pack Page 71

mailto:D.Hipkiss@bury.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

20

Annual Forward Planning Events
 New focus, priorities 

identified
 Consultation of 

Outcomes with 
departments

 Project Lead officers 
nominated 

 Risk assess 
outcomes

Key risks included within Corporate Risk Assessment 
Action Plan Register (Corporate RAAP)

 Project lead officers appointed to risk assess Strategic 
Objectives & Priorities on behalf of and for Departmental 

Planning purposes
 All key risks presented back to Strategic Leadership 

Team and Executive

Children, Young People & 
Culture Risk Register

Communities & Wellbeing
Risk Register

Resource & Regulation
Risk Register

Risks Internal & External Environment

External Drivers
Financial Strategic Operational Hazards
Interest Rates Competition Regulations Contractual Events
Credit Customer Change Culture Natural events

Industry change Supply Chains
Customer Demand Environmental 
Political Change

Internal Drivers
Liquidity Research Accounting Employees
Cash Flow Development Information Public Access

Systems Properties
Products/Services

Corporate Risk
Management 

Group
Defence Level 2

Cabinet
Defence Level 2

Operational Risk Assessment Action Plan Registers (Op RAAPs) – Assessment of 
risks against day-to-day activity - service provision, programmes, projects etc..

Bury Council 
Strategic 

Objectives & 
Priorities

Corporate  & 
Departmental 
Operational 

Risks

Strategic 
Leadership 

Team
Defence Level 2

Operational Risk 
Management 

Group
Defence Level 1/2

Operational 
Activity

Service/Team/
Project 

Delivery Plans

Operational 
Activity

Service/Team/
Project 

Delivery Plans

Operational 
Activity

Service/Team/
Project 

Delivery Plans

Common 
Risk 

Register

ESCALATED RISK ESCALATED RISKESCALATED RISK

Internal / 
External Audit
Defence Level 3

Document Pack Page 72



21

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: Cabinet 
Full Council

DATE: 14 November 2018
28 November 2018

SUBJECT: Community Safety Plan

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES

CONTACT OFFICER:
Tom Hoghton –Community Safety Manager
t.l.hoghton@bury.gov.uk
0161 253 5099

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL – KEY DECISION

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This report is in the public domain

SUMMARY: To request approval for the Community Safety Plan, a 
high level strategic document.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

1) Cabinet to note the contents of the Plan and its 
priorities and recommend to Council for 
inclusion in the Council’s Policy Framework (this 
is the recommended option).

2)Cabinet to suggest amendments to the Plan and 
recommend the amended Plan to Council for 
inclusion in the Policy Framework.

3) To reject the Plan. 

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? The proposed plan will 

1

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 75 Agenda Item 8

mailto:t.l.hoghton@bury.gov.uk


replace the Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Strategy in the Council’s Policy Framework as 
set out in the Council Constitution. 

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

The Plan will be delivered within existing 
resources.

Health and Safety N/A

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources:

There are no wider resource implications.

Equality/Diversity implications: There are no implications following an 
assessment of the impact of the proposals

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes
The Community Safety Plan is to meet the 
duties under Sections 5 and 6 of the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 and will replace the 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy in the 
Council’s Policy Framework (under the 
Constitution). 
Section 6 of the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 places obligations on Community 
Safety Partnerships to formulate a 
Strategic Assessment to ascertain the 
levels and patterns of crime, disorder, anti-
social behaviour and substance misuse in 
their area; in order to identify the priorities 
for a three year Community Safety Plan. 
Following the completion of the Strategic 
Assessment and consultation on the 
priorities, the Community Safety Plan is 
then developed to address the priorities 
identified by the Strategic Assessment. 
           

Wards Affected:
All

Scrutiny Interest:

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

2

Document Pack Page 76



1.0 BACKGROUND 
1.1 The development of a Community Safety Plan is a statutory responsibility of 
the Local Authority in conjunction with the Partners that form the Community Safety 
Partnership, Chaired by Chief Superintendent Stuart Ellison.

1.2 The previous Plan ran to 2017 and the Partnership had to delay producing this 
one to allow the Greater Manchester Police & Crime Plan to be launched with the 
priorities identified in the attached plan, directly linking to the Greater Manchester 
Mayor’s priorities

1.3 The Partnership has used data gleaned from the GM consultation when 
developing the GM Mayor’s “Standing Together” Police & Crime Plan and also held a 
public consultation on a proposed draft of this Plan. The Public Consultation was 
carried out on the priorities via the ‘One Community’ portal. It was viewed 71 times 
by members of the public with no adverse comments received. 

1.4 The Plan identifies five key priorities:

 Protect & Support Vulnerable People
 Putting victims first
 Reduce re-offending
 Build stable, cohesive communities
 Develop a partnership approach to community safety

Each of these priorities directly links to the GM Police & Crime Plan whilst also 
addressing local needs. The Plan will be delivered via the Community Safety 
Partnership and six sub-groups that will meet the objectives identified under each of 
the five key priorities. The groups are each accountable to the Community Safety 
Partnership and will provide regular updates on progress.

3.0 CONCLUSION 
That the Community Safety Plan in the form attached to the report is approved for 
recommendation to the Council for inclusion in the Council’s Policy Framework as a 
statutory plan.

List of Background Papers:-

Bury Final 
Community Safety Plan1.pdf

Contact Details:-

Tom Hoghton
Community Safety Manager
0161 253 5099
t.l.hoghton@bury.gov.uk

3

Document Pack Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN
2018 - 2020

Document Pack Page 79



No single agency can deliver on the 
complexities of keeping communities safe 
and so Bury’s Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP) brings agencies together to facilitate a 
joined-up approach. 

The CSP has faced some significant new 
challenges in recent years; most significantly, 
there has been a change in the issues 
presented to partners to address, 
compounded by substantial resource 
pressures. That being said, Bury is a very safe 
town in which to live and work and we are 
confident that this Plan will enable the town 
to continue to thrive.

The Plan is a living, working document.  The 
priorities represent a real but realistic 
challenge for the lead agencies and other 
groups and organisations participating 
alongside them. The priorities and key 
objectives set out in this plan are based upon 
an assessment of crime and disorder issues 
across the Borough and reflect the views of 
the community on matters that need to be 
prioritised. 

FOREWORD

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

Chief Superintendent Stuart Ellison 
(Chair of the Community Safety Partnership)

Councillor Tamoor Tariq 
(Cabinet Member for Communities & Safer Neighbourhoods)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 80



C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places 
obligations on the Community Safety 
Partnership to produce a Community Safety 
Plan to outline how all partners intend to 
work together to impact upon crime and 
disorder, substance misuse and reduce 
reoffending in the local area. 

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 changed 
the way crime and anti-social behaviour was 
to be tackled, as it is recognised that in order 
to be effective, agencies needed to work 
together to address the issues collectively. 

Each local area formed a Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership (CDRP) which are now 
called Community Safety Partnerships 
(CSPs).

INTRODUCTION

Team Bury’s CSP is made up of key statutory 
partners that must ensure specific 
obligations such as public engagement and 
delivery of an action plan are met.

Our partners are: Greater Manchester Police, 
Bury Council, Greater Manchester Fire & 
Rescue Service, Probation Service, 
Community Rehabilitation Company, HM 
Prison Service, Six Town Housing, Youth 
Offending Service, Bury CCG, Public Health

We also work with a large number of other 
public and private sector partners as well as 
voluntary and community groups to 
collectively implement and deliver initiatives 
that will help all areas of Bury become a safe 
place to live, work and visit.

WHO ARE TEAM BURY’S COMMUNITY 
SAFETY PARTNERSHIP?

How does the plan link with the Regional 
Context?

This strategy aligns closely with the Mayor of 
Greater Manchester’s ‘Standing Together’ 
Police & Crime Plan. This enables us to 
co-ordinate resources more effectively and 
undertake regional work where beneficial. 

Each of the priorities directly links to one of 
the three over-arching goals identified in the 
Standing Together Plan:

1. To keep people safe - for those who live, 
work, socialise and travel in Greater 
Manchester, as well as protecting those who 
are vulnerable.

2. To reduce harm and offending – preventing 
anti-social and criminal behaviour by 
intervening earlier and rehabilitating offenders.

3. To strengthen communities and places – by 
helping to build resilient communities and 
strengthening the delivery of public assets

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 81



WORKING TO COLLECTIVELY 
IMPLEMENT AND DELIVER 
INITIATIVES THAT WILL HELP 
ALL AREAS OF BURY BECOME 
A SAFE PLACE TO LIVE, WORK 
AND VISIT.

According to the 2011 census, the population 
of Bury has increased by 4360 since 2001. 
Since 2015, it is estimated that more people 
moved out of Bury than moved in from 
elsewhere, and more people were born in 
Bury than died. 

The 2011 census results for Bury put our 
population at 185,060, whilst the 2016 figures 
show the population at 189,330; showing a 
2% increase in 5 years.  By 2020 the 
population is estimated to reach 
approximately 193,400.
   
The age profile of the town’s population has 
changed over time, with those aged 65+ 
having increased by 26% between 2001-2016. 
In 2016 38.2% of Bury’s population were aged 
under 16 or over 64, and based on current 
projections it is anticipated that by 2020 this 
will reach 39.2%.   

During the period 2007-2017 there were just 
over 3,100 new dwellings built in Bury, with 
33% of these being built in Radcliffe. The 
average in the past ten years has been 312 
new dwellings per year, whilst the past five 
years has seen an average completion rate of 
357 new dwellings per annum.
 
Bury has an increasingly diverse mix of ethnic 
and religious communities. Latest census 
figures show that in 2011 10.8% of residents 
described themselves as belonging to a 
mixed, black, Asian or other ethnic persons 
group, compared to 6.1% in 2001. There have 
been significant increases in both Asian and 
black ethnic groups. 

ABOUT BURY

There is also a large proportion of the 
population in Bury that identify their religion 
as Jewish. 42% of Jewish people in Bury live 
in the Sedgley area; these people constitute 
2.4% of Bury’s entire population.

There is a comparative lack of quantitative 
data on lesbian, gay, bisexual and 
transgender (LGBT) people and communities 
in Bury as information on sexual orientation 
and gender identity was not collected at the 
last census. By applying national data from 
2016 to Bury’s population figures, it is 
probable that there are approximately 13,060 
people living in Bury (6.9%) that do not 
identify themselves as heterosexual / 
straight, some will also identify other than 
Cis-gender (a different gender to the one in 
which they were born.) or Intersex (Born with 
several variations in sex characteristics).

Information on civil partnerships was 
collected in the 2011 Census, with 253 people 
in Bury responding that they were in a 
registered same-sex civil partnership.
 
Although levels of deprivation have reduced 
in Bury between 2010–2015, Bury is about 
average for England at local authority levels 
of deprivation. It is ranked 122nd most 
deprived of the 326 districts in England, and 
of the 10 areas in Greater Manchester, Bury is 
the 8th most deprived (i.e. 3rd least deprived) 
Compared with the overall Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) rank, Bury is relatively less 
deprived for: education; skills and training; 
and barriers to housing and services, and is 
more relatively deprived for: employment; and 
health and disability. 

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0
D

ocum
ent P

ack P
age 82



DEMAND FOR COMMUNITY 
SAFETY IN BURY

On an average day in Bury:
• There is a Police Officer on duty for every 12,500 people
• There are 11 incidents of Domestic Abuse
• There are 6 incidents of Criminal Damage or Arson
• Community Rehabilitation Company will supervise a total caseload of 450 offenders 
• The Police deal with 4 incidents relating to Mental Health

In an average month:
• 43 Hate Crime incidents will occur
• There are 235 Public Order offences
• 2 Anti-Social Behaviour Contracts are issued
• The Community Rehabilitation Company will deliver rehabilitation group work to 104 offenders
• 30 defective fire alarms are replaced by The Fire Service
• There are 150 violent crimes resulting in an injury

In an average year:
• There is 1 Homicide
• 236 new cases of Anti-Social Behaviour are dealt with by the Local Authority.
• 867 Safe and Well Visits are delivered by the Fire Service
• There are 912 Road Traffic Collisions reported to the Police.
• There are 804 missing person reports
• 66 families are supported by the Children’s and Young Persons Domestic Violence Worker

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

1

43

12,500

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 83



Some key achievements throughout the life of the last Plan include:

Protecting Vulnerable People
• Increased frequency of MARAC meetings to provide quicker interventions for victims of 
Domestic Abuse
• Increased the number of Independent Domestic Violence Advocates dealing with high-risk 
victims
• Introduced an early-intervention process for standard-risk victims of Domestic Abuse to reduce 
the risk of escalation
• Launched a Domestic Abuse Strategy, which will be revised in 2018.
• Piloted a Behaviour Change programme to work with Perpetrators of Domestic Abuse
• Launched a new emergency accommodation project for victims of Domestic Abuse
• Following a violent disorder neighbourhood Police teams commenced a programme of 
working with the residents of a caravan park in order to forge stronger relationships with this 
isolated community.
• A Children’s and Young Persons Domestic Violence Worker was appointed to support families 
where Domestic Violence & Abuse was a factor.
• More than 100 people have completed a Domestic Abuse Support Group session at Children’s 
Centres.  

Transforming Justice
• At the end of 2015 Bury began a pilot to divert female adult offenders out of the criminal justice 
system. The scheme is run in conjunction with Women of Worth who are a GMCA funded charity 
supporting vulnerable women. In the last two and a half years, 81 female adult offenders have 
been referred to the scheme for support as an alternative to prosecution. The scheme has seen 
some significant successes, not only reducing the re-offending rate (8%) lower than that of the 
national average (19%) but also identifying domestic abuse as a link to offending. 
• Co-location of services with Police, CRC and Probation has led to improved flow of information 
and enhanced Partnership working.

Reducing Crime & ASB
• ASB was down 26% in the 12 months to April 2018
• Developed place-based working approaches to manage ASB and crime
• Community Groups funded using Proceeds of Crime monies to fund schemes with a focus on a 
reduction in ASB.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2014-17

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

Resilient Communities
• Developed a co-ordinated approach across 
Partnership to Social Media campaigns
• Ran a number of campaigns across Hate 
Crime, ASB and Domestic Abuse both across 
GM footprint and more local, targeted 
campaigns
• Undertook a significant amount of training 
with schools, professionals and in 
communities around Hate Crime, Prevent, 
Cohesion and Domestic Abuse
• Worked with Town Centre colleagues to 
regain Purple Flag accreditation for Bury 
Town Centre
• Opened a number of Hate Crime Reporting 
Centres across Bury. We now have more Hate 
Crime Reporting Centres per capita than any 
other area in Greater Manchester
• Relaunched Strategic Interfaith Group as 
Bury Faith Forum with Faith Groups taking 
ownership

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 84



C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

P R I O R I T Y  1

This priority reflects our core business and 
recognises the range of needs that many 
vulnerable people who come into contact with 
partner agencies have, so that we create a 
more person-centred approach to 
vulnerability and victimisation. 

As such, we would like to see significant 
progress in some specific crime types such 
as Modern Slavery but also see 
improvements in outcomes for vulnerable 
individuals involved in any crime type or 
antisocial behaviour. In this approach we are 
prioritising children and vulnerable adults as 
our focus of safeguarding.

Who will deliver this? 
Domestic Abuse Strategic Group, Domestic 
Abuse Forum, Community Safety Partnership. 

This contributes to Priorities 1, 2 & 3 from the 
GM Standing Together Plan.

PROTECT AND 
SUPPORT 
VULNERABLE 
PEOPLE AREAS OF FOCUS

Victims of domestic abuse and sexual violence - including Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), 
Forced Marriage and ‘honour’ based violence

What we will do
• Ensure that all potential victims are accessing services, with specific 
emphasis on Minority Groups and older people.
• Bring together key Partners from Statutory Services and Voluntary Sector to ensure a 
co-ordinated approach where services are jointly commissioned.
• Ensure frontline and specialist services are up-skilled to be able to identify; approach; engage 
and rehabilitate perpetrators of abuse to prevent re-victimisation.
• Build on existing Early Intervention & Prevention approaches to stop Domestic Abuse from 
happening in the first place.
• Undertake systematic gathering of intelligence (particularly softer intelligence) to inform 
service delivery.

Child Sexual Exploitation

What we will do
• Work with Partners to prevent and tackle CSE through awareness-raising in communities, 
front-line training for agencies and robust enforcement action against offenders.
• Contribute to the Child Sexual Exploitation and Missing From Home Strategy
• Develop information sharing protocols with Safeguarding Boards and appropriate Sub-Groups

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 85



C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

AREAS OF FOCUS

Improve pathways to enable victims to access support they need

What we will do
• Identify gaps in, and opportunities to improve, support services for victims of crime, identifying 
any barriers and sharing ‘what works’, with a particular focus on ‘Early Help’. 
• Improve quality of response to victims of Hate Crime.
• Identify opportunities to strengthen the victim services model through local integration and 
collaborative working with other support services. 
• Proactively identify opportunities to intervene early to prevent harm.

PUTTING VICTIMS FIRST

Being a victim of crime can undermine a person’s confidence and make them unhappy or 
frightened. It can affect a person’s outlook on life. The Criminal Justice System should be 
service-orientated, with the victim at the centre of all it does. Victims and witnesses of crime and 
anti-social behaviour deserve the very best treatment, service and outcomes possible to help 
them cope, recover and thrive.

Who will deliver this? 
Victim Services Co-ordinator for the Police will lead on much of this work supported by all Task 
& Finish Groups.

This contributes to Priority 1 from the GM Standing Together Plan.

P R I O R I T Y  2

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 86



C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

Managing repeat offenders remains a key 
priority not only for Bury but nationally. 
Statistics estimate that around half of all 
crime is committed by individuals with 
previous convictions with an estimated cost 
to the taxpayer of £9.5 to £13 billion per year. 
Alongside this are the Personal and 
Community impacts of crime which make 
this one of the most important issues facing 
the Partnership.

Who will deliver this? 
Reducing Re-offending Group, IOM 
Partnership Meeting, Community Safety 
Partnership. 

This contributes to Priority 2 from the GM 
Standing Together Plan

REDUCE 
RE-OFFENDING AREAS OF FOCUS

Strategic Approach

What we will do
• Create a single, integrated multi-agency plan for reducing offending and re-offending 
• Develop and monitor referral pathways/ access to key services to ensure offenders have the 
support they need to stop offending

Restorative Justice

What we will do
• Develop an effective Restorative Justice model for Adults and Youths

Out of court disposals

What we will do
• Development of effective out of court disposals as an alternative to the Criminal Justice System 
(where there is evidence of a reduction in recividism)

P R I O R I T Y  3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 87



C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

With a population that is becoming 
increasingly diverse it is important to work 
actively to identify changing issues and 
maintain Bury’s high level of cohesion. 

As Regional, National and International 
events unfold we must respond quickly and 
effectively where there are tensions to be 
addressed. Our concern is not just with race 
and culture - it also examines the many 
factors that could divide our local community 
such as social class, prejudice and 
discrimination on the grounds of age, gender, 
disability, faith or sexual orientation.

Additionally, we cannot underestimate the 
positive impact that access to safe public 
spaces, organised sport and culture can have 
both on a community’s wellbeing and levels 
of crime and we will work together with 
partners to promote these ideals. 

Who will lead on this work? 
Hate Crime Forum & Prevent Steering Group.

This contributes to Priorities 1,2 and 3 from 
the GM Standing Together Plan.

AREAS OF FOCUS

Hate Crime

What we will do
• Develop a new Hate Crime Strategy aimed at understanding, preventing and tackling Hate Crime 
in Bury. 
• Undertake targeted work with Perpetrators of Hate Crime in hotspots.
• Work closely with communities to raise awareness and encourage reporting of Hate Crime.

Prevent

What we will do
• Challenge the ideology of extremism, and provide support for individuals who are vulnerable to 
radicalisation.
• Ensure systems and training are in place to encourage professionals and members of the public 
to report relevant concerns.

Community Cohesion

What we will do
• Ensure that we are having efficient, representative engagement with communities and actively 
seeking to implement public feedback in delivering our services.

BUILD STABLE,
COHESIVE 
COMMUNITIES

P R I O R I T Y  4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 88



AREAS OF FOCUS

Neighbourhood Delivery Model

What we will do
• Contribute to the development of the PSR Hub and effective place-based initiatives 

Integrated working

What we will do
• Seek closer alignment with key Partner Boards to improve opportunities for joint working and 
reduce duplication.

ASB

What we will do
• Ensure that efforts to address Anti-Social Behaviour are intertwined with the PSR Hub processes 
and that the whole borough benefits from a Partnership approach.

Public Sector Reform is changing the face of how services are delivered. Community Safety 
Partners are at the forefront of meeting these challenges and are driving transformational change 
and redesign of services by developing new partnerships and ways of integrating delivery to 
provide services that are fundamentally better.

Who will deliver this? 
All partners.

This contributes to Priority 3 from the GM Standing Together Plan.

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

DEVELOP A PARTNERSHIP APPROACH 
TO COMMUNITY SAFETY

P R I O R I T Y  5

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 89



 
STRUCTURE

Delivery will be via an Action Plan developed 
through the Community Safety Partnership 
which will set out what each of the Task and 
Finish Groups detailed in the structure will do 
to achieve the objectives identified under the 
5 Priorities. 

A key action of the Partnership is to 
co-ordinate delivery, bring partners together 
and identify resources and skills in order to 
achieve the best possible outcomes.

Performance Management
The action plan will be built around a robust 
outcome-based performance management 
framework to review and monitor progress. 
The plan will be reviewed and refreshed 
annually.

DELIVERING 
THE PLAN

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y  P L A N  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 0

COMMUNITY SAFETY
PARTNERSHIP

GREATER MANCHESTER
COMBINED AUTHORITY

TEAM BURY
WIDER LEADERSHIP

HEALTH AND
WELLBEING BOARD

SAFEGUARDING
BOARDS

REDUCING
RE-OFFENDING

DVA STRATEGIC
GROUP

ORGANISED CRIME
GROUP

HATE CRIME
FORUM

PREVENT STEERING
GROUP

JOINT ENGAGEMENT
TEAM

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 90



If you need help understanding this document:

Contact: Community Safety Manager
Service: Bury Council, Community Safety Team
Email: communitysafetyteam@bury.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 253 5099

Address: Room 26, Bury Town Hall,  
Knowsley Street, Bury. BL9 0SW

Document Pack Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: Cabinet

DATE: 14 November 2018

SUBJECT: Domestic Violence & Abuse Strategy

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES

CONTACT OFFICER:
Tom Hoghton – Community Safety Manager
t.l.hoghton@bury.gov.uk
0161 253 5099

TYPE OF DECISION: Key

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This report is in the public domain

SUMMARY: To seek approval of the Strategy to deal with domestic 
violence and abuse.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

1) To approve the attached Strategy 
(recommended)

2)  To approve the attached Strategy with 
amendments

3) To reject the Strategy

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

The Plan will be delivered through existing 
resources.

Health and Safety No issues

Statement by Executive Director There are no wider resource implications.

1

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 93 Agenda Item 9

mailto:t.l.hoghton@bury.gov.uk


of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications:
There are no implications, following an 
assessment of the impact of the proposals.

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes           

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest:

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 This Strategy was developed through the DVA Strategic Group and the DVA 
Forum (a Provider group), which are responsible to the Community Safety 
Partnership.

1.2 The Strategy aims to paint a picture of the size of problem nationally and also in 
the Borough. Domestic Abuse is rising in Bury and remains a key priority for Police 
colleagues but it is also becoming more complex, with more victims reporting additional 
needs

1.3 Six priorities were identified through the Strategy:

 Improve Strategic Co-ordination
 Reduce re-offending
 Reduce re-victimisation
 Remove inequalities and gaps in provision
 Enhance workforce development
 Further develop primary prevention approaches

Under each of these priorities are a number of Actions that will be delivered through the Domestic 
Abuse Strategic Group and the Domestic Abuse Forum. These Groups are accountable to the 
Community Safety Partnership who govern this area of work. 

This Strategy will ultimately aim to achieve the following outcomes:

 A safer, more supportive place to live for individuals and groups at risk of Domestic 
Violence and Abuse

 An informed population who know how to access help and support related to Domestic 
Violence and Abuse

2

JH

Document Pack Page 94



2.0 Consultations – Public consultation via ‘One Community’ portal. No adverse 
comments received.

3.0 CONCLUSION 

That member approve the attached Strategy to deal with domestic violence and 
abuse.

List of Background Papers:-

DVA Strategy 
Final1.pdf

Contact Details:-

3

Document Pack Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



BURY DOMESTIC
VIOLENCE AND
ABUSE STRATEGY
2018 - 2021

Document Pack Page 97



Domestic Violence & Abuse (DVA) can 
happen to anyone and does not discriminate. 
Understanding why a relationship becomes 
abusive can be particularly complex and is 
often linked to other social issues that may 
be experienced by one or both partners. 

The effects of Domestic Abuse do not begin 
and end with the victim – the whole 
household suffers. More than 750,000 British 
children a year witness Domestic Abuse. In 
Bury the majority of high-risk cases that are 
reported to the Police have a child in the 
Household. 

Domestic Violence and Abuse covers a whole 
range of abuse-types which can only be 
tackled through a robust multi-agency 
response. For these reasons, Domestic 
Violence and Abuse remains a key priority for 
Team Bury.

This strategy aims to provide the context and 
direction for the development of initiatives 
and services across Bury. With strong 
commitment of partner agencies to work 
together we believe we can deliver better 
outcomes for families.  

FOREWORD

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

Bury Domestic Violence & Abuse Health Needs Assessment 2017

This was commissioned by the Domestic Abuse Strategic Group to inform this Strategy and the 
commissioning of Domestic Abuse services across Bury. 

The findings from this assessment were fed into this Strategy.

Government Violence against Women & Girls Strategy

Our strategy embraces the ethos and approach of the national strategy, recognising that the vast majority of 
victims are women but is inclusive, acknowledging that men can also be victims.

www.gov.uk/government/publications/strategy-to-end-vIolence-against-women-and-girls-2016-to-2020

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE)

NICE has developed guidance on multi-agency working to highlight the need for co-ordinated 
partnership working at operational and strategic levels, along with training and organisational 
support.

www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50

KEY STRATEGIC DRIVERS

We have identified the following priorities 
which will form the bedrock of an Action Plan 
to strive towards the aspiration of eliminating 
Domestic Abuse in Bury:

1. Improve Strategic Co-ordination 
2. Reduce re-offending
3. Reduce re-victimisation
4. Remove inequalities and gaps in provision
5. Enhance workforce development
6. Further develop primary prevention 
approaches

Joint Chairs of Bury’s Domestic Abuse 
Strategic Group

Councillor Tamoor Tariq 
(Cabinet Member for Communities & Safer Neighbourhoods)

Karen Dolton 
(Interim Director of Children’s Services)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 98



D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

In developing this strategy we have reviewed work of partners to learn what has worked and to 
recognise the achievements made from 2015-18:

Improving prevention and early intervention:
• Created a suite of information on the Bury Directory for anyone to access to learn more about 
Domestic Abuse and how to seek help.
• Delivered training to increase awareness amongst professionals of Female Genital Mutilation and 
Honour Based Violence
• Rolled out Operation Encompass, which gives schools the information to provide early support to 
children whose parents have been the victim of Domestic Abuse.
• Developed the Strive model of providing early support via Volunteers to standard-risk victims of 
Domestic Abuse 
• Children & Young Persons Domestic Violence Worker in place, providing support to children 
affected by DVA

Changing behaviours and attitudes:
• Developed a successful Perpetrator programme from which we learned a great deal about the 
best way to engage Perpetrators and begin the process of changing their behaviour. 
• Ran a multitude of campaigns across different strands of Domestic Abuse; from ‘Sitting Right with 
You’ & ‘White Ribbon’, large-scale campaigns to local single-issue campaigns like ‘Ask for Angela’
• ‘Voice of the Child’ training rolled out to all Police Officers
• All GP surgeries receive DVA resources and displays 

Strong leadership and management:
• We commissioned a Health Needs Assessment to cast a critical eye over the strategic direction of 
Domestic Abuse provision
• Standardised the approach to training across Partners to ensure all services (statutory and third 
sector) can access DVA training
• Developed a shared Action Plan created with input from all services
• Domestic Abuse Forum created to give a specific voice to third sector and Service Providers

Reducing repeat victimisation:
• Secured funding for refuge provision with specialist support
• IDVA service re-tendered ensuring support for high-risk victims 
• Victim Services model embedded with Independent Victim’s Advocates receiving DVA referrals 

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
NATIONAL 
CONTEXT

Domestic abuse occurs accross our society 
regardless of age, gender, race, sexuality, 
wealth, and geography of the victim or 
perpetrator. DVA touches the lives of many.

Evidence shows that women 
disproportionately experience domestic 
abuse. It is an internationally recognised 
phenomenon rooted in gender inequality and 
historic gender-based roles.

An estimated 1.9 million adults aged 16 to 59 
years experienced domestic abuse in the last 
year, according to the year ending March 
2017 Crime Survey for England and Wales 
(1.2 million women, 713,00 men).

There were 46 arrests per 100 domestic 
abuse-related crimes recorded by 39 police 
forces in the year ending June 2017.

The police recorded 1.1 million domestic 
abuse-related incidents and crimes in the 
year ending March 2017 and of these, 46% 
were recorded as domestic abuse-related 
crimes; domestic abuse-related crimes 
recorded by the police accounted for 32% of 
violent crimes.

1.1 million

46 arrests

16 - 59 years

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 99



LOCAL CONTEXT

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

14%

86%

Ramsbottom

North Manor

Moorside

Tottington

Radcliffe
North

Radcliffe
East

Church
East

Redvales

Unsworth

Besses

Pilkington Park

St Marys

Sedgley

Holyrood

Radcliffe
West

Elton

The trend over the three years has been a very gradual uplift in incidents, with the average 
for 17/18 being 5% higher than the average for 15/16. Although Bury has the second-lowest 
number of incidents across GM; per head of population we fare a little worse.

0

Apr 1
5

Jun 15
Aug 15

Oct 
15

Dec 
15

Feb
 15

Jun 16
Aug 16

Oct 
16

Dec 
16

Feb
 17

Apr 1
7

Jun 17
Aug 17

Oct 
17

Dec 
17

Feb
 18

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Bury District 2015 - 2018 DA incidents

Greater Manchester DA incidents 2017 - 2018

Man
chest

er

Salf
ord

Tam
esi

de

Stockp
ort

Bolto
n

Wigan

Traf
ford

Bury

Rochdale

Oldham

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

To
ta

l I
nc

id
en

ts

In
ci

de
nt

s 
pe

r C
ap

ita

0

0.005

0.01

0.015

0.02

0.025

0.03

Total Incidents Incidents per Capita

1150 to 1370 (2)
910 to 1150 (3)
670 to 910 (3)
430 to 670 (4)
190 to 430 (5)

Domestic abuse incidents 2015 - 2018
Numbers by Ward

The following graphs provide a snapshot of 
the Domestic Abuse landscape in Bury at the 
moment. However, it should be noted that an 
estimated 70% of domestic violence incidents 
go unreported.

Nationally it was reported in 2017 that 
Domestic Abuse accounts for about 11% of 
all crimes so Bury suffers disproportionately 
from this issue. 

DVA as a proportion of total crime in Bury.

The areas that suffer from the highest rates 
of DVA are also those which experience the 
highest levels of deprivation. While being 
mindful of under-reporting, identifying 
‘hotspot’ areas enables us to focus efforts on 
reducing victimisation and reoffending in the 
areas of greatest need.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 100



D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

LOCAL CONTEXT

With close to 60% of all cases at Bury’s MARAC having children in the families and 
nationally 62% of children being harmed in households where Domestic Violence and 
Abuse is prevalent we need to ensure that we have appropriate services intervening at the 
right time.

MARAC is the Multi-Agency Risk-Assessment Conference which looks at High-Risk cases of 
Domestic Abuse. Again, the trend over 2 years is an upward one, demonstrating not only 
that we are getting more complex, high-risk cases.

Bury’s repeat cases follow the GM average pattern. With an average of 30% of cases being 
repeat, we need to ensure we intervene early to break the cycle.
(infographic shown overleaf)

0

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

90

2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Number of Marac Cases

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

Percentage of Marac Cases with Children

20%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

22%

24%

26%

28%

30%

32%

34%

36%

38%

Repeat Marac Cases 2017 - 2018

GM Average Bury

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

GM Average Bury

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 101



Bury’s Domestic Violence & Abuse Strategic Group is responsible for delivering a multi-agency 
approach to tackle domestic abuse. The Group operates within the governance structure below, 
ensuring that the effective implementation of our strategy supports the wider work to tackle abuse 
across statutory and voluntary partnerships. 

The DVA Forum comprises 3rd Sector Partners and feeds into the Strategic Group to enable them 
to focus on effective practice and commissioning.

GOVERNANCE

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

These are the overarching areas of work that Bury’s Domestic Abuse Strategic Group and its wider 
partners will focus on over the next 3 years. These themes will form the basis of a partnership 
action plan which will detail how these objectives will be delivered.

Objective 1 
Strategic Coordination
• Develop an Action Plan with shared outcomes & accountability
• Engage key personnel to gain commitment to the Strategy and drive forward Partnership 
initiatives & commissioning
• Engage with GMCA to cascade best practise information locally and develop Partnership 
working initiatives across the conurbation.
• Robustly evaluate all services related to Domestic Abuse operating in the borough.
• Ensure that a process is in place to share learnings from Domestic Homicide Reviews and 
that Actions and Recommendations are completed

Objective 2 
Reducing Reoffending
• Measure impact of existing interventions
• Work with GMCA to develop GM-level initiatives
• Develop pathways for perpetrators and monitor wider holistic DVA referrals 

Objective 3 
Reduce Re-victimisation
• Consult with Customers to understand their journey and the effectiveness of services
• Embed Victim Services Model throughout borough
• Undertake targeted campaigns for professionals around civil orders 
• Understand and intervene on impact of Domestic Abuse on victims to prevent re-victimisation 

PRIORITIES

COMMUNITY SAFETY
PARTNERSHIP

GREATER MANCHESTER
COMBINED AUTHORITY

TEAM BURY
WIDER LEADERSHIP

HEALTH AND
WELLBEING BOARD

SAFEGUARDING BOARDS
& CHILDRENS TRUST

DVA STRATEGIC
GROUP

DVA 
FORUM

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 102



Objective 4 
Inequalities / Gaps in provision
• Use information gleaned through consultation process to understand under-reporting issue
• Develop initiatives to remove barriers for minority groups and under-reporting groups
• Develop process for development and management of Outcome Based Accountability scorecard
• Develop approaches to produce data around non-intimate DVA to measure the extent and
impact of the issue.

Objective 5 
Workforce Development
• Map current training and review if fit for purpose
• Develop a suite of Quality-assured DVA training with a range of options for all services/sectors
• Measure effectiveness of all training delivered

Objective 6 
Primary Prevention
• Undertake multi-platform awareness-raising campaigns across a number of issues, ensuring 
effective evaluation
• Develop consistent early intervention processes and healthy relationship packages for 
schools/young people
• Understand impact of DVA on Children

PRIORITIES

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  &  A B U S E  S T R AT E G Y  2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 1

• An effective, coordinated, multi-agency response to Domestic Abuse that is flexible and responds to 
changes in local need
• Resources identified across all agencies that can contribute to tackling Domestic Abuse and 
then allocated to maximise efficiencies and cost-effectiveness
• Bury residents understand what is meant by Domestic Abuse and that they know how to 
access help
• People experiencing Domestic Abuse access effective support which meets their needs
• Processes are in place to identify and support children and young people at risk of domestic abuse 
(via witnessing adults and/or own relationships) and to promote healthy relationships
• Perpetrators of domestic abuse do not repeat their abusive behaviour
• Practitioners, organisations and businesses are trained to identify victims and signpost or provide 
appropriate support

KEY INDICATORS

Bury’s Community Safety Partnership (CSP) will have ultimate responsibility for the delivery of Bury’s 
Domestic Violence & Abuse Strategy and will oversee the development of an Action Plan that will pull 
together all the key priorities 

The CSP will review the strategy on an annual basis and will consider the following:
• Progress made against the strategy’s objectives.
• The overall impact and effectiveness of the strategy.
• New legislation or government directives for incorporation in the Strategy.
• Local need and any other emerging priorities.
• Whether actions and activities are achieving the required outcomes.
• Engagement with partner boards
• The progress of the Domestic Abuse Strategic Group which will be responsible for developing the 
Action Plan that will outline the key activities to be delivered over the next 3 years. They will report 
back to the CSP on a quarterly basis.

MONITORING AND MEASURING 
THE IMPACT

• A safer, more supportive place to live for individuals and groups at risk of Domestic Violence 
and Abuse
• An informed population who know how to access help and support related to Domestic 
Violence and Abuse

KEY OUTCOMES

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 103



If you need help understanding this document:

Contact: Community Safety Manager
Service: Bury Council, Community Safety Team
Email: communitysafetyteam@bury.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 253 5099

Address: Room 26, Bury Town Hall,  
Knowsley Street, Bury. BL9 0SW

Document Pack Page 104



DECISION OF: CABINET

DATE: 14 NOVEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: DEMOLITION AND REMEDIATION OF FORMER 
POLICE HEADQUARTERS, IRWELL STREET, BURY

REPORT FROM: COUNCILLOR E O’BRIEN
CABINET MEMBER FINANCE AND HOUSING

CONTACT OFFICER: KEITH WATSON
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES MANAGER

TYPE OF DECISION: EXECUTIVE (KEY DECISION)

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

FOR PUBLICATION

SUMMARY: The report advises on the current position regarding the 
demolition and remediation of the development site of 
the former GMP Headquarters, Irwell Street, Bury and 
contains recommendations for completing the works.

This report excludes details of likely expenditure as they 
are deemed to be commercially sensitive and detailed 
within a second report in the closed section of the 
agenda.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Cabinet is requested to note the current position and 
consider the following final site remediation options:

Option 1. 
Approve the entering into a contract for the remaining 
works, with the associated expenditure as detailed within 
the closed report, subject to the completion of the tender 
evaluation and a value engineering exercise.

Option 2. 
Approve the implementation of an additional 
procurement exercise to market test through an open 
tender.

Option 3. 
Approve the leaving of the site in its current state and 
seek an appropriate developer to remediate and further 

1

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 105 Agenda Item 10



develop the site. 

Option 1 is recommended.

Delegated approval is also sought to authorise officers to
negotiate a final tender amount with the lowest tenderer.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

Costs will initially be funded from earmarked 
reserves and will ultimately be recouped from 
the proceeds of the development of the site.

Health and Safety Implications The letting of a contract for the remaining 
demolition and remediation works will have 
the effect of minimising health and safety 
risks.

Statement by Executive Director 
for Business, Growth and 
Infrastructure.

The recommended option will leave the site 
in a suitable condition to support future 
redevelopment and therefore supports the 
Council’s wider ambitions for growth and 
regeneration.

Equality/Diversity implications: None

Considered by Monitoring Officer: There are no legal implications at this stage 
and a procurement process has been carried 
out, with delegated authority sought to 
negotiate the final tender amount. Any new 
works involving expenditure over £250,000 
require Cabinet approval.                    JH   

Wards Affected: East Ward

Scrutiny Interest: Overview and Scrutiny

TRACKING/PROCESS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: PAUL PATTERSON

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

√ √

Scrutiny Committee Cabinet/Committee Council
√

2

Document Pack Page 106



1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 In February 2013, the Council approved:

 The acquisition of the former GM Police headquarters at Irwell Street, for the sum 
of £260,000.  Technical due diligence was undertaken in advance of the purchase 
of the building resulting in an estimate of demolition costs of £746,538, including 
an allowance of £367,000 for the removal of asbestos.  These figures were 
factored into the calculation of the purchase price.

 The entering into a Development Agreement with Ask Real Estate, to enable the 
development of a 100,000sq.ft food store within the site comprising the Police 
HQ and the Castle Leisure Centre.  This was to be the next development scheme 
to be entered into with Ask following the completion of the Knowsley Place 
complex.
Within the accompanying report it was stated that ‘The costs of acquisition of the 
Greater Manchester Police headquarters, removal of asbestos and its demolition 
will be held as a development cost and it should be recognised that if the 
development did not go ahead such costs (currently estimated at £1m) may not 
be recouped.’

 The development of a replacement leisure centre within the airspace above the 
Q Park car park at Knowsley Place, which was to be funded from the food store 
development proceeds.

1.2 The Council and Ask obtained a detailed planning permission for the food store, 
however the subsequent collapse in the development market for this use resulted 
in there no longer being a viable business case for the scheme.  Alternative uses 
were explored with Ask, but in the difficult development climate subsisting at 
that time, viable replacement schemes could not be identified.  Ask’s formal Joint 
Venture relationship with the Council ended in 2015, with their sale of the Q Park 
car park to the Authority and their withdrawal from the Townside management 
company.

1.3 The absence of a funding source for the replacement leisure centre resulted in the 
Bolton Street facility remaining fully operational.

2.0 REMEDIATION PROGRESS TO DATE

2.1 To date the remediation of the site has comprised of removal of accessible 
asbestos followed by two separate demolition contracts. Partial demolition was 
completed including the southern tower under one contract (Walter Forshaw 
Ltd.) The Contractor went into administration before completion of the works. 
Subsequently, an additional tender process was completed for the remainder of 
the works, however the tender award became protracted due to qualified bids 
being received despite the items being explicitly precluded within the tender 
documentation. Due to this delay and the potential hazards remaining on site a 
decision was implemented to award a contract under the dangerous structures 

3

Document Pack Page 107



notice, Section 79 of the Building Act to demolish the remaining northern tower. 

2.2 As the original demolition contract was incomplete along with limited terms of the 
dangerous structures contract a number of stockpiles remain on site containing 
unprocessed materials and wastes with limited documented record of each 
stockpile contents.

2.3 Security measures in place for the vacant site include perimeter fencing and an 
on-site guard is present at agreed hours, which are extended to cover school 
holidays.

2.4 Total expenditure incurred to date is £1,158,279 this comprises site acquisition 
costs of £260,000 and remediation works comprising asbestos removal of 
£346,167, and the two phases of completed demolition to date of £552,112.

2.5 This report recognises the procurement process, and the hampering of the 
original demolition contractor going into administration, has adversely impacted 
on the overall cost to the Council. The review of the architects department and 
estates being undertaken by Savills to report on how the both departments 
become better equipped to support the growth strategy. It will include cost and 
project management processes adhered commercially, to put in place effective 
contractual risk mitigation practices to ensure the councils investment into 
growth, delivers strong competitive pricing.       

3.0 REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS

3.1 The Council is now engaged in the latest iteration of the master planning of Bury 
Town Centre, having appointed the IBI Group to identify strategic opportunities 
to take the town forward over the next 10 year time horizon.  The Irwell Street 
area is seen as a key strategic site within this master plan.  

3.2 Development options are to be considered in detail in 2019, however the site is 
currently being viewed as a potential wellbeing neighbourhood, a model which 
would encompass aspirational town centre living combined with spa and fitness 
and other leisure facilities. This would be part of a town centre regeneration 
solution to introduce new life style choices in Bury’s towns, as part of a strategy 
to counter the declining retail sector. Such a scheme is currently being master 
planned by the Council for the Uplands in Whitefield as a proof of concept and 
within proposals for Prestwich village centre.

4.0 CURRENT POSITION

4.1 A tender process has recently been completed for the remaining phase of 
remediation of the site. Tenders were sought from a select list of tenderers 
derived from an approved framework via the Chest portal. The tender invitation 
required that the evaluation would be based upon lowest price (95%) and an 
evaluation of the tenderer’s Social Value submission (5%).

4.2 Although the site is secured the site potentially presents a health and safety risk 
due to the amount of unmanaged waste material stock piled.

4.3 The remedial works contract will involve making a structural assessment of the 
remaining structures and the materials/wastes left on site from the previous 

4

Document Pack Page 108



contracts before completing the demolition of the lower floors and basements of 
the northern and southern towers, earthwork remediation and site clearance 
works. 

4.4 The works include the following but are not limited to:

The controlled demolition and removal of all aspects of the remaining structures, 
assets, fixtures, fittings, ground slabs, basement construction, boilers/plant and 
all ancillary fuel/storage tanks. The crushing of all clean brick work and concrete 
which is to be utilised when filling all below-ground voids. All contaminated 
material is to be treated and disposed of. Boundary retaining walls etc. along 
with adjacent basement slabs are to be removed down to 400mm below the 
corresponding pavement level.  The site will be finished with a surface of graded 
fill and will be contained within a chain link fence with access gates.

A provision is included for 24/7 manned security on site throughout the contract 
period.

5.0 SITE REMEDIATION OPTIONS

5.1 The Irwell Street area is a key strategic site within the master plan for this area’s 
redevelopment.  If it is not remediated then it would be rendered incapable of 
future redevelopment.  This would potentially result in the site being left in its 
current condition for an unforeseeable period of time, and although the site is 
secure it would continue to potentially present a health and safety risk due to 
the amount of waste material stock requiring removal.

5.2 Option 1

Approve the required expenditure and the entering into a contract for the final 
phase of demolition and remediation. Programme to completion is 25 weeks with 
16 weeks on site commencing early 2019. 

Although the site is secured the site potentially presents a health and safety risk 
due to the amount of unmanaged waste material stock piled this risk would be 
mitigated and addressed by progressing and accepting the current tender 
submission.

5.3 Option 2

To implement an additional procurement exercise to market test through an open 
tender, this would allow alternative contractors such as civil engineering and/or 
environmental contractors to participate. This option would require additional 
time for procurement/contractor evaluation with no guarantees of any reduction 
in tender amounts or other additional benefits. This option would not promptly 
mitigate any potential health and safety risks from the current site conditions.

5.4 Option 3

To leave the site in its current state and seek an appropriate developer to 
remediate and further develop the site.  This option would not promptly mitigate 
any potential health and safety risks from the current site conditions and will not 
guarantee any additional cost savings.

5

Document Pack Page 109



6.0 LESSONS LEARNED

6.1 Despite considerable due diligence over successive demolition contractors being 
undertaken in advance of the award of contracts, performance issues have 
nonetheless been encountered with the actual works on site.  This culminated 
in there being a long period of inactivity on site following the demolition of the 
first tower by Walter Forshaw Ltd, the company subsequently being placed into 
administration.  

6.2 It is therefore apparent that as part of the final phase of demolition, the 
timely completion of the works will need to be ensured by a greater than 
normal level of scrutiny and supervision of the contractor.  This will include 
more frequent reviews on site, monitoring actual progress against the detailed 
milestones required as part of the contract documentation, and escalating any 
delays to the programme plan to ensure recovery of any time lost.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Members are recommended to approve Option 1, as there is no certainty that 
other options would be more financially beneficial to the Council, and timescales 
for demolition/remediation would inevitably be lengthened.  Entering into a 
contract for the final phase of demolition/remediation will deliver a site cleared 
and suitable for redevelopment, which is a key priority within the Council’s 
Growth agenda. 

7.2 Delegated approval is sought to authorise officers to negotiate a final tender 
amount with the lowest tenderer.

List of Background Papers:-

Tender submissions report and appraisal. 

Contact Details:-

Keith Watson
Architectural Services Manager

Telephone: 0161 253 5303
Email: k.watson@bury.gov.uk

6

Document Pack Page 110

mailto:k.watson@bury.gov.uk


 

4 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GM COMBINED AUTHORITY  

HELD 28 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT OLDHAM CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury      Councillor Rishi Shori 
Manchester - Greater Manchester Councillor Richard Leese 
Deputy Mayor 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Alex Ganotis 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
TfGMC     Councillor Mark Aldred 
Bolton     Councillor Ebrahim Adia 
Bury     Councillor Andrea Simpson 
Manchester    Councillor Angeliki Stogia 
Rochdale    Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
     Councillor Janet Emsley 
Salford     Councillor Paula Boshell 
Tameside    Councillor Leanne Feeley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA –Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
 
Bolton     Sue Johnson 
Bury      Geoff Little 
Oldham    Carolyn Wilkins 
Manchester    Joanne Roney 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 

Document Pack Page 111 Agenda Item 11



2 

 

Stockport     Caroline Simpson  
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Wigan      Donna Hall 
TfGM     Jon Lamonte 
GMP     Ian Pilling 
GMFRS     Jim Wallace 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 
 
 
APOLOGIES: 
 
Bolton   Tony Oakman 
Bury   Councillor Sharon Briggs 
Stockport   Pam Smith 
Wigan   Councillor Jenny Bullen 
GM Police   Ian Hopkins 
 
GMCA 180/18  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Sharon Briggs (Bury) and Jenny Bullen 
(Wigan).  Apologies were also received from Pam Smith (Stockport) and Tony 
Oakman (Bolton). 
 
 
GMCA 181/18  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The GM Mayor extended a warm welcome to Jim Wallace, Chief Fire Officer and 
updated the GMCA on the introduction of the new shift system for fire fighters.  
 
The Mayor expressed his thanks to Jon Lamonte, Chief Executive, TfGM and Deputy 
Lieutenant for Greater Manchester, for the work done under his leadership and 
wished him success in his new role.  
 
 
GMCA 182/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
City Mayor, Paul Dennett and Councillors Richard Leese and Paula Boshell declared 
disclosable pecuniary interests in Item 19 - North West Made Smarter Pilot, as 
Directors of the Growth Company Board and left the meeting during consideration of 
the report. 
 
GMCA 183/18 MINUTES OF GMCA MEETING HELD ON 27 JULY 2018 
 
The minutes of the GMCA meeting held on the 27 July 2018 were submitted for 
consideration. 

Document Pack Page 112



3 

 

 
RESOLVED /- 

 
That the minutes of the GMCA Meeting held on the 27 July 2018 be approved, 
subject to the addition of the Deputy Mayor to the list of attendees. 
 
 
GMCA 184/18  GMCA APPOINTMENTS 

 
RESOLVED /- 

 
a) GMCA Waste & Recycling Committee 

 
That the appointment of Councillor Susan Emmott to replace Councillor Neil 
Emmott as the Rochdale representative on the Waste and Recycling Committee 
for 2018/19 be approved. 
 

b) GMCA Audit Committee 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Mary Whitby as a substitute member to the 
GMCA Audit Committee to replace Councillor Susan Haworth (Bolton) be 
approved. 
 

c) GMCA Housing Planning and Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee  
 
That the appointment of Councillor Steven Bashforth to replace Councillor 
James Larkin (Oldham) be approved. 

 
d) Overview and Scrutiny Committees Substitute Pool 

 
That the appointment of Councillor Peter Davis to replace Councillor Clint 
Phythian (Oldham) be approved. 

 
e) Transport for GM Culture & Social Impact Fund & AGMA Statutory Functions 

Committee 
 
That the appointment of Councillor John Byrne (Bolton) to replace Councillor 
Mohammed Zamen (Rochdale) be approved. 
 

f) Greater Manchester Local Enterprise Partnership 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Andrew Western (Trafford) to replace 
Councillor Sean Fielding (Oldham) be approved. 
 

g) Growth Company Board 
 

Document Pack Page 113



4 

 

That the appointment of Councillor Arooj Shah (Oldham) to replace Councillor 
Cath Hynes (Trafford) be noted. 
 

h) European Social Investment Fund Sub Committee 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Sean Fielding (Oldham) to replace Andy 
Burnham (GM Mayor) be approved. 
 

i) Transport for the North Scrutiny Committee 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Rachel Skillen (Bury) to the TfN Scrutiny 
Committee be approved. 
 

j) Halle Board 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Janet Emsley (Rochdale) to replace 
Councillor Linda Thomas and the appointment of Eamonn Boylan (GMCA Chief 
Executive) to replace Donna Hall (Wigan Chief Executive) be approved. 

 
 

GMCA 185/18 TRANSPORT FOR GM COMMITTEE MINUTES – 14 SEPTEMBER 
2018  

 
RESOLVED /- 

 
That the minutes of the Transport for GM Committee held 14 September 2018 be 
noted. 

 
 

GMCA 186/18 GM LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP – 17 SEPTEMBER 2018  
 
RESOLVED /- 

 

That the minutes of the GM Local Enterprise Partnership held 17 September 2018 be 

noted. 

 
 

GMCA 187/18  GMCA RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 27 JULY 2018 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the GMCA Resources Committee held 27 July 2018 be 

noted. 
 

2. That it be noted that the membership of the Committee will be reviewed to 
ensure gender balance and proposals will be submitted to the GMCA in 
October 2018. 

Document Pack Page 114



5 

 

 
 
GMCA 188/18  GMCA WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE – 13 SEPTEMBER 
2018  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GM Waste and Recycling Committee held 13 September 
2018 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 189/18 GMCA AUDIT COMMITTEE – 26 JULY 2018 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
i) That the minutes of the GMCA Audit Committee meeting held 26 July 2018 be 

noted. 
 

ii) That the following recommendation of the Audit Committee held 26 September 
2018 regarding the Treasury Management Report be approved: 
 
The Treasurer, in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer, be authorised to 
enter into a £165m loan facility with the European Investment Bank and to 
subsequently draw down loans in line with the longer term funding 
requirements of the GMCA. 

 
 
GMCA 190/18 GMCA OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES – MINUTES: AUGUST 

AND SEPTEMBER 2018   
 

RESOLVED /- 
 

a) Housing, Planning and Environment –  16 August & 13 September 2018 
 
 

That the minutes of the Housing Planning and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 16 August and 13 September 2018 be noted. 

 
b) Economy, Business Growth & Skills –  17 August & 21 September 2018  
 

That the minutes of the Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 17 August & 21 September 2018 be noted. 

 

c) Corporate Issues and Reform – 21 August & 18 September 2018  

 

Document Pack Page 115



6 

 

That the minutes of the Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held 21 August and 18 September 2018 be noted. 

 

GMCA 191/18 BREXIT UPDATE AND CONSIDERING GREATER MANCHESTER’S 

PREPAREDNESS FOR THE UK’S EXIT FROM THE EU 
 

Councillor Richard Leese, Portfolio Lead for Business and Economy, introduced a 

report that outlined the actions that GMCA should take to ensure GM was ready for 

the UK’s departure from the EU in both the short and longer term. 

 

Members were reminded that the Brexit Summit had been held the previous week, 

and there was still some uncertainty on the level of progress that could be made by 

March 2019 and whether there was going to be an agreed deal that could pass the 

test of a meaningful vote in Parliament or whether it would be a no deal Brexit. 

 

The report provided an update on the progress of a number of areas, including: 

 

o GM’s lobbying position in terms of ongoing  negotiations and the relationship 

with the ‘White Paper’ issued by Government 

o  Informs the public of GM of the current positon and the risks to GM, with 

work underway on the detail of those risks, which has been inhibited by the 

absence of Governments assessment of the likely impact of the different 

scenarios on GM 

 

A ‘No Deal’ Brexit, was likely to be in line with a minus 12% loss in GVA as projected 

in the Government’s ‘hard Brexit’ analysis.  

 

It was suggested that those impacted the most would be those that were always 

doing least well, with those areas in GM that were behind the curve economically 

would be the most likely to suffer the most from a ‘No Deal’ Brexit.  

 

Government has started to issue advice notes around the risks of ‘No deal’ Brexit 

and it was suggested the time was now right to ask the Civil Contingencies 

organisation to start planning on a GM level.  There were some clear day 1 risks 

identified in the report that had would have immediate consequences on the 

availability of food, energy and medicines / medical devices, or other products / 

services which operate a ‘just in time’ supply chain.  GM does need to look at 

mitigating against those day 1 risks, immediate problems and scenarios.   

 

GM also needs to consider its position in respect of the collapse of negotiations and 

the potential ‘No deal’ outcome for leaving the EU and that a further Referendum 

should be a last resort.  

 

Document Pack Page 116



7 

 

The GM Mayor confirmed that a ’No Deal’ Brexit was fundamentally unacceptable to 

GM and all means necessary should be used to stop it and to call, as a last resort, for 

2nd Referendum vote. 

Members drew attention to the uncertainty of the status of EU nationals, and the 

potential for labour shortages, especially in industries such Health and Social Care, 

which could result in the collapse of a very essential public service   The Government 

‘Green Paper’ has not yet been published, to which Local Authorities have provided 

input. 

 

Members noted the importance for Government to share the GM impact paper for 

GM and for clarifying the status of EU nationals in the UK so that necessary 

arrangements/plans could be implemented to support the local economy.  

 

Members were made aware that Trafford Council had passed a ‘peoples vote’ 

motion at its last meeting and it was reiterated that Government should be 

pressured to avoid a ‘No deal’ Brexit. 

 

Members were also advised that the impact would be wider than just economic, 

with implications for policing, security, intelligence, counter-terrorism activity.  

Government has been continually pressed about the important role of working 

collaboratively with EU partners to bring criminals to justice. 

 

The impact on Manchester Airport, as a major employer and the contribution to the 

local economy, does need to be assessed, particularly the impact on ‘open skies’. 

  

The GM Mayor highlighted that it was crucial that GM begins contingency planning 

across sectors at both GM and Local Authority level to ensure GM remains resilient 

in the face of any immediate challenges.  He further added that further devolution 

was the answer to Brexit. 
 

RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the updated principles for the UK’s exit from the EU, including those 

regarding full flexibility and freedom of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund be agreed. 

 

2. That Government be pressed to release the GM Impact Assessment that has 

been undertaken, to enable GM to prepare a response to mitigate the impact of 

Brexit. 

 

3. That further clarity be sought from Government regarding the terms on which EU 

nationals could remain in Britain post March 2019 and their status, recognising 

that these EU nationals fulfil an important role in the health and social care 

sector. 

 

Document Pack Page 117



8 

 

4. That the actions required, both of Government and the GMCA, as outlined in 

section 5.4 of the report, with the addition of an assessment of the impact on 

Manchester Airport and GMP and security cooperation, in order to ensure GM 

was as ready as possible for the transition out of the EU, whatever deal was 

agreed with the EU (including a ‘no deal’ scenario) be agreed. 

 

5. That it be agreed that a ‘No Deal’ Brexit be opposed outright and where all other 

options have been exhausted, the GMCA would support a peoples vote.  

 

6. That the content of the September Brexit Monitor (Appendix 1 to the report) be 

noted. 

 

GMCA 192/18  HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING UPDATE 

 

Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, 

introduced a report providing members with an update on the current positon in 

terms of progress in tackling homelessness and rough sleeping. The report also 

included updates on the main homelessness programmes being undertaken through 

GMCA. 

 

It was reported that over the past 18 months, GMCA had been developing a range of 

programmes to support local authorities’ work in tackling homelessness and to 

support the Mayor in his commitments on rough sleeping. These programmes have 

been jointly developed through a joint bidding and negotiation process with central 

government and supported by every local authority.  

 

The three main programmes of work are as follows: 

 

• Social Impact Bond for Entrenched Rough Sleepers 

• Homelessness Prevention Trailblazer 

• Housing First Programme 

 

It was further reported that to ensure effective engagement through the Social 

Impact Bond, a bid for additional funding has been made and in late August, it was 

confirmed that an additional £829,000 would be committed to the GM SIB by Central 

Government. 

 

Members were also reminded that the public needed to be aware that not all rough 

sleepers were begging and that not all those begging on the streets of Manchester 

were sleeping rough.  The public need to be encouraged to donate to organisations 

rather than to individuals.  Manchester City Council were in the process of reviewing 

temporary and immediate accommodation measures for families who have been 

evicted by private housing landlords.  

 

Document Pack Page 118



9 

 

Work was also progressing to identify support across the piece as a priority, with 

mental health a particular priority.  

 

In discussing the winter provisions for 2018, the Mayor highlighted the importance 

of further improving GM’s approach to rough sleeping and supporting individual’s 

under respite. He further highlighted the importance of supporting individuals 

through reconnection, to help them live normal lives by supporting individuals off 

the street and into jobs. 

 

The Mayor further conveyed thanks to Tim Heatley, Capital Centric, for bringing 

businesses together to provide financial support to the campaign and highlighted the 

importance of supporting individuals through reconnection. 

 

The meeting viewed the Mayor’s video in support of ‘A Bed Every Night’. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the report and the continuing progress made on securing resources and 

tackling homelessness and rough sleeping in GM be noted. 

 

2. That the award of £829k to support the GM Social Impact Bond for Entrenched 

Rough Sleepers be noted. 

 

3. That it be noted that the GMCA has secured a total of £8m to deliver a GM-wide 

Housing First Programme.  

 

4. That the proposal to split the Programme funding over 3 years be approved as 

follows: £7.6m direct contract costs; £157k for a Housing First Innovation Fund; 

and £243k for additional administration costs. 

 

5. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer, in consultation with the 

Mayor and Portfolio Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, to 

award the contract to be entered into between the GMCA and the successful 

tenderer for the delivery of the GM Housing First Programme. 

 

6. That authority be delegated to the GMCA's Monitoring Officer to enter into the 

legal contract between the GMCA and the successful provider who has been 

procured to deliver the GM Housing First Programme. 

 

7. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer in consultation with the 

Mayor and Portfolio Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, to 

determine the detailed allocation of Trailblazer funding in line with the 

Document Pack Page 119



10 

 

indicative funding for each of the 6 Trailblazer themes, including making grants 

to district councils where this is appropriate.  

 

8. That it be agreed that the GMCA continues to receive regular updates on 

progress in tackling homelessness and rough sleeping on a bi-monthly basis. 

 

9. That it be agreed that the GMCA supports the Mayor’s intention to bring 

forward proposals to fund a campaign of winter homelessness provision under 

the title of “A Bed Every Night”, based on those whose last address was within 

GM. 

 

10. That other City Regions be requested to establish similar campaigns to ensure 

that homelessness can be tackled collectively across the City Regions. 

 

11. That members be thanked for their support in bringing the homelessness 

strategy together and that the progress in individual local authorities be 

acknowledged and recognised. 

 

12. That the business sector be thanked for their support and job opportunities to 

address homelessness. 

 

13. That Vincent Kompany be thanked for the donation of the proceeds from his 

football testimonial to the Mayor’s Homelessness Fund and ‘a bed every night’ 

campaign. 

 

14. That the GMCA Communications Team be thanked for producing the ‘A bed 

every night’ campaign.   

 

GMCA 193/18 WELFARE REFORM AND UNIVERSAL CREDIT IN GREATER 

MANCHESTER 

 

Cllr Sean Fielding, Portfolio Lead for Education, Skills, Work & Apprenticeships 

introduced a report that updated the GMCA on the welfare reform and the roll out 

of Universal Credit in GM, the latest monitoring of the impacts of these changes, and 

proposed activity to be undertaken to ensure the successful delivery of the Greater 

Manchester Strategy. 

 

It was reported that evidence from frontline services in GM and nationally, 

suggested that there would be a negative impact for GM residents as a result of 

these reforms, but there was also an opportunity to identify where we can engage 

and support more residents and enhance their employment and skills offer. 

 

Document Pack Page 120



11 

 

Members noted the work that had been carried out and considered the priorities 

outlined under Appendix 4 of the report.  

 

It was agreed that members comments on the proposed actions and requests of 
Government, as contained with Appendix 4 of the report submitted, be sent direct to 
Councillor Sean Fielding within the next week, for further consideration. 
 

The GM Mayor further added that some of the actions listed under Appendix 4 could 

be taken forward without any additional ask of Government.  He also suggested that 

GM should also be making the case for further devolved powers from the 

Department of Works & Pensions, in a similar way to the health and social care 

agreement. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the scale of welfare reform undertaken since 2012 be noted.  
 

2. That the GM Welfare Reform dashboard and the case studies of individual 
residents affected by reforms and the Universal Credit roll out  be noted. 
 

3. That the proposed areas of focus and suggested actions to be undertaken by the 
GMCA and partners be noted. 

 

4. That any further comments on the proposed actions and requests of 
Government, as contained with Appendix 4 of the report submitted, be sent 
direct to Councillor Sean Fielding within the next week, for further 
consideration. 

 

5. That Councillor Sean Fielding and GMCA officers be thanked for the work 
undertaken. 
 

GMCA 194/18  UPDATE ON GM SKILLS CAPITAL 2017-2020 PROGRAMME 
 
Councillor Sean Fielding, portfolio Lead for Education, Skills, Work & 
Apprenticeships, introduced a report that outlined the Skills Capital 2017 – 2020 
Programme updated and sought approval from the Combined Authority on the 
procurement process for Round 2.  
 
RESOLVED /- 

  

 
That progress on evaluating the next round of bids received be noted. 

 
GMCA 195/18 TOWN CENTRE CHALLENGE AND MAYORAL DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATIONS  
 

Document Pack Page 121



12 

 

The GM Mayor introduced a report that updated the GMCA on the Mayor’s Town 
Centre Challenge and on proposals to develop a Greater Manchester Mayoral 
Development Corporation ‘model’ to facilitate delivery of complex town centre 
regeneration schemes. 

 

Councillor Alex Ganotis, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region, welcomed the 
report, and thanked all those involved for their work to date. He further commented 
that Stockport Council had undertaken a detailed analysis of the different delivery 
vehicles that could be established to lead the regeneration of the Town Centre West 
area and had come to the conclusion that the Mayoral Development Corporation 
model was the most appropriate way to achieve sustained success and focus.  It was 
suggested that the work carried out under the Town Centre West area could be used 
as a model for the whole of GM.  
 
Members noted the importance of having a unified urban cities agenda as this would 
strengthen GM’s city centres. 
 
RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the report be noted. 

 

2. That the designation of a Mayoral Development Corporation in Stockport, be 

agreed in principle, subject to further work, with a further report to be 

submitted to the GMCA in December 2018, in advance of any final decision. 

 

3.  That it be noted that the proposed principles, as outlined in paragraph 4.1 of the 

report submitted, would be subject to further consultation, with the outcome 

submitted to a future meeting of the GMCA.  

 

4. That officers in both Stockport and the GMCA be thanked for the work 

undertaken to date. 

 
GMCA 196/18  USE OF PLANNING DELIVERY FUND RESOURCES 
 
Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, 
introduced a report that updated members on Local Authority priorities and sought 
approval on the funding requests for the available Planning Delivery Fund (PDF) 
resources following consultation with Place Directors.  
 
Members were made aware that Government had acknowledged the requirement 
for revenue funding to establish a Place Based Team to support GM Local Authorities 
to deliver housing across GM, although disappointingly the funds had not been 
forthcoming. 
  

RESOLVED /- 

Document Pack Page 122



13 

 

 
1. That the approach to prioritisation, as set out in the report, be agreed. 

 
2. That the £950,000 Planning Delivery Fund allocation as indicated in the report at 

paragraph 2.7, be approved. 
 
3. That the consequent transfers of funding to relevant GM districts be agreed. 
 
4. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Chief Executive, in consultation with 

the Portfolio Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, to allocate 
the identified contingency amounts. 

 
5. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer to adjust allocations of 

grants to districts as work proceeds to maximise the positive impact of the 
available funding be approved. 

 

6. That it be noted that although Government had acknowledged the requirement 
for revenue funding to establish a Place Based Team to support GM Local 
Authorities to deliver housing across GM, the GM Housing Package has not yet 
been confirmed.  

 
 
GMCA 197/18 GREATER MANCHESTER INTERNATIONALISATION STRATEGY – 

MIDTERM REVIEW 

 

Sir Richard Leese, Portfolio Lead for Business and Economy, introduced a report that 

set out the progress of the implementation of the GM Internationalisation Strategy 

since it was agreed in 2016 and sought agreement of the key actions proposed for 

the next 18 months and noting the key issues arising, including Brexit, that impact on 

its delivery. 

 

The GM Mayor commented on the importance of building on international 

relationships with growing economies to further investment. He further added that 

HS2 was an essential investment for GM and that he would continue to exert 

pressure on Government to ensure support was received to make Manchester 

Airport one of the best connected airports.  

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

 

1. That the issues identified, within the report submitted, in the delivery of the GM 

Internationalisation Strategy be noted. 

 

2. That the key activities, as contained with paragraph 6 of the report submitted, 

within the next 18 months proposed, within the report be submitted, be agreed. 

Document Pack Page 123



14 

 

 

3. That the infrastructure risks, not related to Brexit, including High Speed 2 and 

Northern Powerhouse Rail be noted and the Government be continued to be  

pressured to deliver the required funding. 

 

GMCA 198/18  NORTH WEST MADE SMARTER PILOT 

City Mayor, Paul Dennett and Councillors Richard Leese and Paula Boshell declared 
disclosable pecuniary interests in Item 19 - North West Made Smarter Pilot, as 
Directors of the Growth Company Board and left the meeting during consideration of 
the report. 
 

Jim Taylor, Portfolio Lead Chief Executive for Economy, introduced a report that 

sought approval for the GMCA to act as the accountable body for the Made Smarter 

National Adoption Pilot that will be led by the Growth Company on behalf of the 

North West Local Enterprise Partnerships. 

 

The GM Mayor asked that thanks be recorded to Juergen Maier, CEO of Siemens UK 

for his contribution and positive work on driving productivity through the adoption 

of industrial digital technology (IDT) in the UK manufacturing sector. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That it be agreed to support the Made Smarter National Adoption Pilot. 
 
2. That it be agreed to act as the accountable body for the £20million Made 

Smarter National Adoption Pilot. 
 
3. That it be agreed that the GMCA grant the Section 31 funding for the Made 

Smarter National Adoption Pilot, made as a grant from Department for 
Business, Enterprise and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), to the Growth Company to 
deliver the Made Smarter National Adoption Pilot, retaining a small amount to 
cover the cost of undertaking accountable body functions as required by BEIS 
be agreed. 

 

4. That Juregen Maier, CEO of Siemens UK Ltd be thanked for the Made Smarter 
Review published in 2017. 

 
 
GMCA 199/18  NORTHERN & TRANSPENNINE EXPRESS RAIL PERFORMANCE 

UPDATE  

 

The GM Mayor introduced a report that provided an overview of performance and 

update on the delivery of franchise commitments for Arriva Rail North (Trading as 

Northern) and TransPennine Express since the commencement of their franchises. 

Document Pack Page 124



15 

 

 

Members were advised that passengers across GM continued to receive an 

unacceptably poor level of service; Northern performance recording a decline in 

performance down to 77% PPM (public performance measure) figure, with a growing 

trend towards an increase the short forming of trains. There have been reports of 

overcrowded platforms at stations across GM, with passenger unable to access 

overcrowded trains. TransPennine performance was recording a decline down to 

71%, compared to 91% last year. The lack of improvement signified fundamental 

problems on the railways that was not just regarding timetables. National Rail have 

failed to diagnose or provide solutions to the issues.  

 

He further added that as a member of the TfN Board he had repeatedly raised 

concerns over the performance of Rail operators. At the previous TfN meeting, in 

conjunction with other Northern Leaders it was proposed that a trouble-shooter be 

appointed. The Mayor then informed the members that this proposition was agreed 

by Government and that Richard George had been appointed to undertake this 

position. 

 

It was reiterated that rail users continued to face issues, in particular residents of 

Bolton and Wigan have significantly been affected, with no alternative Metrolink for 

residents to access. 

 

Concerns were raised over the continued contractual issues around Sunday services 

with priority being given to regional and national services over Local services.  

 

Members noted that it in order to improve air quality, reduce congestion and to 

support a multitude of GM strategies, it was important to have a well-functioning rail 

network. 

 

The GM Mayor assured members that he would continue to engage with 

stakeholders to ensure contractual issues around Sunday services were resolved 

alongside performance improvement. He further added that he would urge the 

GMCA to apply for the removal of the franchise if no improvement was seen once 

the electrification of the Bolton corridor had been completed, before the roll out of 

the May 2019 timetable. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

 

1. That the report be noted. 

 

2. That it be noted that the non-operation of Sunday Services was as a result of 

the contractual issues Northern Rail was experiencing with staff, with the 

intervention the Department for Transport required to resolve with Northern 

Document Pack Page 125



16 

 

Rail.  The Mayor would continue to raise the issue at meetings of Transport for 

the North.  

 

3. That the Department for Transport and rail operators be requested to respond 

to the need to prioritise local rail services over national rail services. 

 

 4. That it be noted in response to the pressure from Transport for the North, 

Government had agreed to appoint Richard George to oversee both Network 

Rail and Train Operating Companies, to deliverd the service improvements 

promised in the May timetable. 

 

5. That dependent upon the delivery of a much improved service by December 

and the delivery of the new timetable by May 2019, the GMCA should demand 

the removal of the franchise from current train operators. 

 

GMCA 200/18  MAYORS CYCLING & WALKING CHALLENGE FUND 

 

The GM Mayor presented a report that sought the approval of the second tranche of 

schemes for Programme Entry for the Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund 

(MCF); and to approve the associated delivery budgets. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

1. That the second tranche of cycling and walking schemes be approved and 
granted Programme Entry for inclusion in the MCF. 

 
2. That it be noted that the schemes would be further developed and subject to 

subsequent approval by the GMCA, as appropriate. 
 

3. That the release of £0.5 million, of the previously agreed budget for scheme 
development and design in 2018/19 be approved and that authority be 
delegated to the GMCA Treasurer to make appropriate grants to District 
Councils to facilitate this.  

 
GMCA 201/18 GREATER MANCHESTER LOCAL GROWTH DEAL – 6 MONTHLY 

TRANSPORT PROGRESS UPDATE 

The GM Mayor introduced a report which provided members with the latest position 
in relation to the Local Growth Deal Transport Programme (Tranches 1,2 and 3) 
following on from the last update in March 2018. 
 
RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the current position in relation to the current Growth Deal Major 
Schemes programme be noted. 

 

Document Pack Page 126



17 

 

2. That the current position in relation to the Growth Deal Minor Works and 
Additional Priorities programmes be noted and that the decision to proceed 
with expenditure of £2.2 million on Key Route Network traffic control systems 
(SCOOT), £3.4 million on Key Route Network traffic control systems (MOVA) to 
upgrade traffic signal locations, £3.4 million of Bus Passenger Access 
Enhancements and £1.1 million of Rail Station Enhancements (all of which have 
been subject to the agreed Growth Deal Minor Works Governance 
arrangements and previously approved for inclusion in the Capital Programme) 
be approved. 

 

GMCA 202/18  TFGM NON-EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS 

 
RESOLVED /- 

That the report be withdrawn for consideration at a future GMCA meeting. 
 

GMCA 203/18  LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP REVIEW 

 

Sir Richard Leese, Portfolio Lead for Business and Economy, introduced a report that 

sets out the background and recommendations of the recent Local Enterprise 

Partnership Review and the key implications for Greater Manchester.  

 

It was reported that GM already complied with the majority of the review 

recommendations which reflected current GM policy and practice, particularly in 

regard to geography, representation and transparency. However, there are a few 

recommendations to be addressed and members were advised that Government has 

committed to provide additional funding to support the process. 

 

RESOLVED /- 

 

That the report be noted. 

 

 

GMCA 204/18 GREATER MANCHESTER INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK 

PROJECTS UPDATE – PART A AND B REPORTS 

 

RESOLVED /- 

That the reports be withdrawn pending further work on the proposal, with a view to 
submitting reports to the GMCA meeting in October 2018. 

GMCA 205/18 GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT LOANS FUND 
– INVESTMENT APPROVALS RECOMMENDATION 

 
Paul Dennett, Portfolio Holder for Planning, Housing & Homelessness, presented a 
report to the GMCA which sought approval of the GM Housing Investment Loans 
Fund.  

Document Pack Page 127



18 

 

 
RESOLVED /- 

1. That the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund loan in the table below, as 
detailed further in this and the accompanying Part B report be approved:  

 

BORROWER  SCHEME  DISTRICT  LOAN 

Olive Property 
Construction 
North Ltd 

Vernon Street, 
Ashton Under Lyne 

Tameside £1.366m 

 
 
2. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction 
with the GMCA Monitoring Officer to prepare and effect the necessary legal 
agreements  
 
GMCA 206/18  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED /- 

That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public should be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on 
the grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out 
in paragraph 3, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

GMCA 207/18 GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT FUND – 
INVESTMENT APPROVAL RECOMMENDATIONS   

 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A report Greater 
Manchester Housing Investment Fund – Investment Approval Recommendation 
(Minutes 2015/18 refers) 

 
RESOLVED /- 

 

That the report be noted. 

 
 
 

 

Document Pack Page 128



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 129 Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 135
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Corporate Financial Monitoring Report April 2018 to September 2018
	Copy of Capital Summary Appendix A
	Copy of HRA Summary Appendix B
	Appendix C Prudential Indicators mth 6 1819

	6 Mid -year Treasury Management Report
	7 Risk Management Annual Report 2017-18
	8 Community Safety Plan
	Community Safety Plan

	9 Domestic Violence  Abuse Strategy
	DAS

	10 Demolition of Former GM Police Headquarters, Irwell St, Bury (Part A report)
	11 For information - Minutes Of Association Of Greater Manchester Authorities / Greater Manchester Combined Authority
	14 Demolition of Former GM Police Headquarters, Irwell St, Bury (Part B report)
	Appendix 2 WYG Tender Appraisal


